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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholder and Board of Directors of CH Energy Group, Inc.
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CH Energy Group Inc. and its subsidiaries
(the “Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and
2021, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders'
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements (collectively referred to as the "financial
statements").

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022 in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material



misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Other Information Included in the Annual Financial Report

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual financial report. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual financial report but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audits of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and
the financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,

based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Telatte 4 Toucke UP

Hartford, Connecticut

February 9, 2023
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholder and Board of Directors of Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation (the
“"Company”) as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the related statements of income, comprehensive
income, equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022,
and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). In our opinion, the
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2022, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2022, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013)
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) and our
report dated February 9, 2023 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company'’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on the Company's financial statements based on our audits. We are a public
accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the
Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations
of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the auditing standards of the PCAOB and in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included
performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such
procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.



Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current-period audit of the
financial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee
and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2)
involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical
audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole,
and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on
the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Impact of Rate-Regulation on Various Account Balances and Disclosures —Refer to Notes 1
and 4 to the financial statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

The Company is a regulated electric and natural gas transmission and distribution utility in the state
of New York and is subject to regulation by the New York Public Service Commission (*Commission”).
The Company defers costs and revenues on the balance sheet as regulatory assets and liabilities when
it is probable that those costs and revenues will be recoverable/refundable through the rate-making
process in a period different from when they otherwise would have been reflected in income. For the
Company, these deferred regulatory assets and liabilities, and the related deferred taxes, are
recovered from or reimbursed to customers either by offset as directed by the Commission, through
an approved surcharge mechanism or through incorporation in the determination of the revenue
requirement used to set new rates. Management has determined it meets the requirements under
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America to prepare its financial
statements applying the specialized rules to account for the effects of cost-based rate regulation.

Rates are generally designed for but do not guarantee the recovery of the Company’s cost of service,
including a return on equity. Regulatory decisions can have an impact on the recovery of costs,
refunds to customers, the rate of return earned on investment, and the timing and amount of assets
to be recovered or liabilities to be refunded through rates. Future recovery of costs and refunds that
may be required are dependent upon factors, such as (1) changes in the regulatory environment, (2)
the ability to recover costs through regulated rates, (3) recent rate orders to the Company and other
regulated entities, and (4) the status of any pending or potential deregulation legislation. While the
Company has indicated it expects to recover costs from customers through regulated rates, there is a
risk that the Commission will not approve full recovery of such costs or approve recovery on a timely
basis in future regulatory decisions. The Commission can reach different conclusions about the
recovery of costs, which can have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

We identified the impact of rate-regulation as a critical audit matter due to the significant judgments
made by management to support its assertions about the impact of regulatory orders on various
account balances and disclosures. Management judgments include assessing the likelihood of (1)
recovery of regulatory assets through future rates, and (2) whether a regulatory liability is due to
customers. Given that management’s accounting judgments are based on assumptions about the
outcome of future decisions by the Commission, auditing these judgments requires specialized
knowledge of accounting for rate regulation and the rate setting process due to its inherent
complexities.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to the impact of regulatory orders on various account balances and
disclosures included the following, among others:

e We tested the effectiveness of internal controls over the initial recognition of amounts as
regulated utility plant and as regulatory assets and liabilities, the monitoring and evaluation of
regulatory developments that may affect the likelihood of recovering costs in future rates or of
a future reduction in rates, and the related disclosures in the notes to the financial statements.

e We evaluated the Company’s disclosures related to the impacts of rate regulation, including
regulatory developments.



e We read and evaluated relevant regulatory orders issued by the Commission for the Company,
regulatory statutes, interpretations, procedural memorandums, filings made by intervenors,
and other publicly available information to assess whether this information was properly
considered by management in concluding upon the financial statement impacts of rate
regulation.

¢ We obtained and evaluated an analysis from management describing the orders and filings
that support management’s assertions regarding the probability of recovery for regulatory
assets or refund or future reduction in rates for regulatory liabilities to assess management’s
assertion that amounts are probable of recovery or a future reduction in rates.

e For regulatory matters in process, we inspected associated documents and testimony filed
with the Commission for any evidence that might contradict management’s assertions.

e We read and evaluated the minutes of the Board of Directors of the Company for discussions
of changes in legal, regulatory, or business factors which could impact management’s

conclusions with respect to the impact of rate regulation on various account balances and
disclosures.

Telntte. 4 Touche UP

Hartford, Connecticut
February 9, 2023

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2017.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholder and Board of Directors of Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Central Hudson Gas & Electric
Corporation (the "Company”) as of December 31, 2022, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO.

We have also audited, in accordance with the auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, the financial statements as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2022, of the Company and our report dated February 9, 2023, expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting -
Central Hudson. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and
are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards of the PCAOB and in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal



control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to
the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Telatte 4 Toucke UP

Hartford, Connecticut
February 9, 2023



REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING — CENTRAL HUDSON

The management of Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation (“management”) is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for Central Hudson

Gas & Electric Corporation (the “Corporation”) as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. Internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that:

¢ pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Corporation;

s provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America and that receipts and expenditures of the
Corporation are being made only in accordance with authorization of management and
directors of the Corporation; and

e provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated
financial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting includes the controls themselves, monitoring (including internal
auditing practices), and actions taken to correct deficiencies as identified.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2022. Management based this assessment on criteria for effective internal control
over financial reporting described in “Internal Control - Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on this assessment,
management determined that, as of December 31, 2022, the Corporation maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting.

The effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2022, has been audited by Deloitte and Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm,
as stated in their report which appears herein.

= O/ %M“Lﬁﬂ/// ,05//42&%

Charles A. Freni, Jr. Lora Gegcheidle
President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

February 9, 2023



CH ENERGY GROUP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

(In Thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2022 2021 2020
Operating Revenues
Electric $ 797612 $ 623823 $ 552,002
Natural gas 220,744 172,425 159,893
Total Operating Revenues 1,018,356 796,248 711,895
Operating Expenses
Operation:
Purchased electricity 323,503 178,737 136,130
Purchased natural gas 79,074 48,260 37,221
Other expenses of operation - regulated activities 361,265 323,707 306,845
Other expenses of operation - non-regulated 136 176 208
Depreciation and amortization 80,016 72,715 66,863
Taxes, other than income tax 78,247 72,837 67,854
Total Operating Expenses 922,241 696,432 615,121
Operating Income 96,115 99,816 96,774
Other Income and Deductions
Income from unconsolidated affiliates 2,547 1,969 1,151
Interest on regulatory assets and other interest income 3,204 2,925 2,421
Regulatory adjustments for interest costs (85) (891) (211)
Non-service cost components of pension and other post-employment benefits
("OPEB") 39,165 20,903 17,744
Other - net 268 2,648 2,033
Total Other Income 45,099 27,554 23,138
Interest Charges
Interest on long-term debt 40,137 34,231 32,778
Interest on regulatory liabilities and other interest 764 2,370 2,769
Total Interest Charges 40,901 36,601 35,547
Income Before Income Taxes 100,313 90,769 84,365
Income Tax Expense 21,180 16,816 15,262
Net Income $ 79,133 $ 73,953 $ 69,103

CH ENERGY GROUP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In Thousands)

Year Ended
December 31,
2022 2021 2020
Net Income $ 79,133 $ 73,953 $ 69,103
Other Comprehensive Income:
Employee future benefits, net of tax expense 147 180 238
Comprehensive Income $ 79,280 $ 74,133 $ 69,341

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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CH ENERGY GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(In Thousands)

Operating Activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in) provided from operating

activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Deferred income taxes - net
Uncollectible expense

Distributed (undistributed) equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates

Pension (credit) expense
OPEB credit

Regulatory liability - rate moderation

Regulatory asset - revenue decoupling mechanism ("RDM") recorded

Changes in operating assets and liabilities - net:
Accounts receivable, unbilled revenues and other receivables

Fuel, materials, and supplies

Special deposits and prepayments

Income and other taxes
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Customer advances
Other advances

Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security ("CARES") Act

Pension plan contribution
OPEB contribution

Regulatory asset - RDM refunded

Regulatory asset - major storm
Regulatory asset - site investig

ation and remediation ("SIR")

Regulatory asset - arrears management program ("AMP")
Regulatory asset - uncollectible write-offs

Regulatory liability - energy efficiency programs including clean energy fund ("CEF")

Regulatory asset - rate adjustment mechanisms ("RAM")
Regulatory asset - deferred natural gas and electric costs

Other - net

Net cash (used in) provided from operating activities

Investing Activities:
Additions to utility plant
Proceeds from sale of assets
Other - net

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing Activities:
Repayment of long-term debt

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Net change in short-term borrowings

Capital contribution
Other - net

Net cash provided from financing activities
Net Change in Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash at Beginning of Period

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash at End of Period

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized
Federal and state income taxes paid, net

Cash Paid for Amounts Included in the Measurement of Lease Liabilities:

Operating cash flows used in operating leases

Non-Cash Operating Activities:

Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities

Non-Cash Investing Activities:
Accrued capital expenditures

Year Ended December 31,

2022 2021 2020
$ 79133 $ 73953 % 69,103
62,580 58,910 54,558
17,436 13,805 12,305
21,118 16,653 15,182
8,170 6,074 10,010

41 (1,844) (340)

(7,507) (400) 2,340
(7,057) (6,048) (6,355)
(4,371) (8,543) (13,748)
2,868 12,806 22,617
(114,231) (53,956) (14,603)
(7,122) (439) 2,534
(6,498) (3,997) (5,401)

229 (198) 311

20,729 3,703 9,554
2,500 571 581
(1,152) 2,812 389
(10,622) 3,738 235
(2,603) (2,603) 5,206
(1,468) (1,475) (1,130)
(528) (812) (1,081)
(6,341) (34,069) (12,450)
(37,067) (7,404) (19,640)
6,815 5,083 (2,514)
(3,039) - -
(4,144) = l
(16,375) (21,103) (17,776)
13,121 10,651 9,452
(35,037) (17,454) 4,172
(3,870) 12,491 7,518
(34,292) 60,905 131,029
(224,842)  (231,582)  (252,857)
4,574 = i
(4,331) (8,687) (3,975)
(224,599)  (240,269) _ (256,832)
(25,364) (45,987) (41,718)
220,000 130,000 130,000
(2,000) 92,000 15,000
54,300 9,396 15,000
(1,164) (723) (747)
245,772 184,686 117,535
(13,119) 5,322 (8,268)
18,129 12,807 21,075

$ 5010 $§ 18129 § 12,807
$ 37,132 $§ 32,528 $ 30,967
$ 2671 $ 2,387 $ 52
$ (409) $ (542) $ (668)
$ 85 $ 387 $ -
$ 16,472 $ 21683 % 21,241

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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CH ENERGY GROUP
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(In Thousands)

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
ASSETS
Utility Plant (Note 3)
Electric $ 1,768,092 $ 1,687,291
Natural gas 788,978 734,165
Common 448,796 425,970
Gross Utility Plant 3,005,866 2,847,426
Less: Accumulated depreciation 698,940 649,513
Net 2,306,926 2,197,913
Construction work in progress 146,661 118,182
Net Utility Plant 2,453,587 2,316,095
Non-utility property & plant 524 524
Net Non-Utility Property & Plant 524 524
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1) 3,237 7,339
Accounts receivable from customers - net of allowance for uncollectible accounts of
$11.0 million and $9.7 million, respectively (Note 2) 216,680 120,600
Accounts receivable - affiliates (Note 18) 441 1,390
Accrued unbilled utility revenues - net of allowance for uncollectible accounts of $0.2
million and $1.5 million, respectively (Note 2) 27,823 25,378
Other receivables 25,906 17,421
Fuel, materials, and supplies (Note 1) 31,238 24,116
Regulatory assets (Note 4) 125,980 78,849
Income tax receivable 502 671
Fair value of derivative instruments (Note 16) 315 1,768
Special deposits and prepayments 42,706 36,208
Total Current Assets 474,828 313,740
Deferred Charges and Other Assets
Regulatory assets - other (Note 4) 226,069 174,483
Prefunded pension costs (Note 12) 59,365 70,222
Prefunded OPEB costs (Note 12) 31,462 30,480
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates (Note 6) 23,523 15,252
Other investments (Note 17) 54,179 56,875
Other 10,497 18,988
Total Deferred Charges and Other Assets 405,095 366,300
Total Assets $ 3,334,034 $ 2,996,659

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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CH ENERGY GROUP
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONT'D)

(In Thousands, except share amounts)

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES
Capitalization (Note 10)
CH Energy Group Common Shareholders' Equity
Common Stock (30,000,000 shares authorized: $0.01 par value;
15,961,400 shares issued and outstanding) $ 160 $ 160
Paid-in capital 488,102 433,802
Retained earnings 584,434 505,301
Accumulated other comprehensive income 166 19
Total Equity 1,072,862 939,282
Long-term debt (Note 11)
Principal amount 1,124,046 906,146
Unamortized debt issuance costs (5,838) (5,139)
Net long-term debt 1,118,208 901,007
Total Capitalization 2,191,070 1,840,289
Current Liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt (Note 11) 2,100 25,364
Short-term borrowings (Note 9) 105,000 107,000
Accounts payable 81,110 64,722
Accounts payable - affiliates (Note 18) 624 -
Accrued interest 10,685 8,185
Accrued vacation and payroll 10,861 11,590
Customer advances 16,953 18,105
Customer deposits 6,846 7,539
Regulatory liabilities (Note 4) 75,053 63,456
Fair value of derivative instruments (Note 16) 14,034 7,563
Accrued environmental remediation costs (Note 14) 3,717 5,900
Other current liabilities 31,926 37,294
Total Current Liabilities 358,909 356,718
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities
Regulatory liabilities - deferred pension costs (Note 4) 74,898 90,934
Regulatory liabilities - deferred OPEB costs (Note 4) 24,652 31,032
Regulatory liabilities - other (Note 4) 262,735 272,555
Operating reserves 2,892 5,006
Accrued environmental remediation costs (Note 14) 70,156 65,753
Other liabilities 32,361 48,373
Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 467,694 513,653
Accumulated Deferred Income Tax (Note 5) 316,361 285,999
Commitments and Contingencies
Total Capitalization and Liabilities $ 3,334,034 $ 2,996,659

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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CH ENERGY GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EQUITY

(In Thousands, except share amounts)

Balance at December 31, 2019
Accounting Standard Adoption —
cumulative effect adjustment (Note 1)
Net income
Capital contributions
Employee future benefits, net of tax

Balance at December 31, 2020
Contribution from Parent - tax sharing
agreement
Net income
Capital contributions
Employee future benefits, net of tax

Balance at December 31, 2021
Net income
Capital contributions
Employee future benefits, net of tax

Balance at December 31, 2022

CH Energy Group Common Shareholders

Common
Stock Common

Shares Stock Paid-In Retained
Issued Amount Capital Earnings AOCI* Total Equity
15,961,400 $ 160 $ 409,406 $ 363,445 (399) $ 772,612
(1,200) (1,200)
69,103 69,103
15,000 15,000
238 238
15,961,400 $ 160 $ 424406 $ 431,348 (161) $ 855,753
4,996 4,996
73,953 73,953
4,400 4,400
180 180
15,961,400 $ 160 $ 433,802 $ 505,301 19 $ 939,282
79,133 79,133
54,300 54,300
147 147
15,961,400 $ 160 $ 488,102 $ 584,434 166 $ 1,072,862

*Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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CENTRAL HUDSON
STATEMENT OF INCOME

(In Thousands)

Operating Revenues
Electric
Natural gas
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses
Operation:
Purchased electricity
Purchased natural gas
Other expenses of operation
Depreciation and amortization
Taxes, other than income tax
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income
Other Income and Deductions

Interest on regulatory assets and other interest income

Regulatory adjustments for interest costs

Non-service cost components of pension and OPEB

Other - net
Total Other Income
Interest Charges
Interest on long-term debt

Interest on regulatory liabilities and other interest

Total Interest Charges
Income Before Income Taxes
Income Tax Expense
Net Income

CENTRAL HUDSON

Year Ended December 31,

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In Thousands)

Net Income
Other Comprehensive Income:

Employee future benefits, net of tax expense
Comprehensive Income

2022 2021 2020
$ 797,612 623,823 $ 552,002
220,744 172,425 159,893
1,018,356 796,248 711,895
323,503 178,737 136,130
79,074 48,260 37,221
361,265 323,707 306,845
80,016 72,715 66,863
78,068 72,795 67,821
921,926 696,214 614,880
96,430 100,034 97,015
3,204 2,924 2,415
(85) (891) (211)
39,192 20,932 17,768
229 2,652 2,046
42,540 25,617 22,018
39,583 33,550 31,978
764 2,370 2,769
40,347 35,920 34,747
98,623 89,731 84,286
20,531 16,108 15,145
$ 78,092 73,623 $ 69,141
Year Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020
$ 78,092 $ 73,623 $ 69,141
147 180 238
$ 78239 $ 73,803 $ 69,379

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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CENTRAL HUDSON
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(In Thousands)

Operating Activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in) provided from operating
activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Deferred income taxes - net
Uncollectible expense
Pension credit
OPEB credit
Regulatory liability - rate moderation
Regulatory asset - RDM recorded
Changes in operating assets and liabilities - net:
Accounts receivable, unbilled revenues and other receivables
Fuel, materials, and supplies
Special deposits and prepayments
Income and other taxes
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Customer advances
Other advances
CARES Act
Pension plan contribution
OPEB contribution
Regulatory asset - RDM refunded
Regulatory asset - major storm
Regulatory asset - SIR
Regulatory asset - arrears management program
Regulatory asset - uncollectible write-offs
Regulatory liability - energy efficiency programs including CEF
Regulatory asset - RAM
Regulatory asset - deferred natural gas and electric costs
Other - net
Net cash (used in) provided from operating activities
Investing Activities:
Additions to utility plant
Proceeds from sale of assets
Other - net
Net cash used in investing activities
Financing Activities:
Repayment of long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Net change in short-term borrowings
Capital contribution
Other - net
Net cash provided from financing activities
Net Change in Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash
Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash - Beginning of Period
Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash - End of Period
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized
Federal and state income taxes paid, net
Cash Paid for Amounts Included in the Measurement of Lease Liabilities:
Operating cash flows used in operating leases
Non-Cash Operating Activities:
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities
Non-Cash Investing Activities:
Accrued capital expenditures

Year Ended December 31,

2022 2021 2020
$ 78,092 $ 73,623 $ 69,141
62,580 58,910 54,558
17,436 13,805 12,305
20,541 16,107 15,163
8,170 6,074 10,010
(7,507) (400) 2,340
(7,057) (6,048) (6,355)
(4,371) (8,543) (13,748)
2,868 12,806 22,617
(115,321) (53,769) (14,288)
(7,122) (439) 2,534
(6,489) (3,997) (5,424)
(2) (31) (273)
20,673 4,487 9,019
2,506 575 587
(1,152) 2,812 389
(10,622) 3,738 235
(2,603) (2,603) 5,206
(1,468) (1,475) (1,130)
(528) (812) (1,081)
(6,341) (34,069) (12,450)
(37,067) (7,404) (19,640)
6,815 5,083 (2,514)
(3,039) - -
(4,144) - -
(16,375) (21,103) (17,776)
13,121 10,651 9,452
(35,037) (17,454) 4172
(773) 11,904 7,646
(34,216) 62,428 130,695
(224,842)  (231,582) 252,857)
4,574 - -
3,878 (4,626) (3,983)
(216,390)  (236,208) 256,840)
(23,400) (44,150) (40,000)
220,000 130,000 130,000
(2,000) 92,000 15,000
46,000 6,000 12,000
(1,164) (723) (747)
239,436 183,127 116,253
(11,170) 9,347 (9,892)
14,541 5,194 15,086
$ 3371% 14,541 $ 5,194
$ 36,573 $ 31,842 $ 30,162
$ 2172 $ 2,021 $ 501
$ (409) $ (542) $ (668)
$ 85 $ 387 $ -
$ 16,472 $ 21,683 $ 21,241

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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CENTRAL HUDSON
BALANCE SHEET

(In Thousands)

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
ASSETS
Utility Plant (Note 3)
Electric $ 1,768,092 $ 1,687,291
Natural gas 788,978 734,165
Common 448,796 425,970
Gross Utility Plant 3,005,866 2,847,426
Less: Accumulated depreciation 698,940 649,513
Net 2,306,926 2,197,913
Construction work in progress 146,661 118,182
Net Utility Plant 2,453,587 2,316,095
Non-Utility Property and Plant 524 524
Net Non-Utility Property and Plant 524 524
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1) 1,598 3,751
Accounts receivable from customers - net of allowance for uncollectible accounts of
$11.0 million and $9.7 million, respectively (Note 2) 216,680 120,600
Accrued unbilled utility revenues - net of allowance for uncollectible accounts of $0.2
million and $1.5 million, respectively (Note 2) 27,823 25,378
Other receivables 26,121 17,493
Fuel, materials, and supplies (Note 1) 31,238 24,116
Regulatory assets (Note 4) 125,980 78,849
Fair value of derivative instruments (Note 16) 315 1,768
Special deposits and prepayments 42,697 36,208
Total Current Assets 472,452 308,163
Deferred Charges and Other Assets
Regulatory assets - other (Note 4) 226,069 174,483
Prefunded pension costs (Note 12) 59,559 70,454
Prefunded OPEB costs (Note 12) 31,462 30,480
Other investments 53,294 55,896
Other 10,495 18,988
Total Deferred Charges and Other Assets 380,879 350,301
Total Assets $ 3,307,442 $ 2,975,083

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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CENTRAL HUDSON
BALANCE SHEET (CONT'D)

(In Thousands, except share amounts)

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES
Capitalization (Note 10)
Common Stock (30,000,000 shares authorized: $5 par value;

16,862,087 shares issued and outstanding) $ 84,311 $ 84,311
Paid-in capital 326,452 280,452
Accumulated other comprehensive income 166 19
Retained earnings 650,113 572,021
Capital stock expense (4,633) (4,633)

Total Equity 1,056,409 932,170
Long-term debt (Note 11)

Principal amount 1,119,400 899,400

Unamortized debt issuance costs (5,810) (5,102)

Net long-term debt 1,113,590 894,298

Total Capitalization 2,169,999 1,826,468

Current Liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt (Note 11) - 23,400
Short-term borrowings (Note 9) 105,000 107,000
Accounts payable 82,288 65,332
Accrued interest 10,666 8,160
Accrued vacation and payroll 10,861 11,590
Customer advances 16,953 18,105
Customer deposits 6,846 7,539
Regulatory liabilities (Note 4) 75,053 63,456
Fair value of derivative instruments (Note 16) 14,034 7,563
Accrued environmental remediation costs (Note 14) 3,717 5,900
Other current liabilities 30,792 34,924
Total Current Liabilities 356,210 352,969
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities
Regulatory liabilities - deferred pension costs (Note 4) 74,898 90,934
Regulatory liabilities - deferred OPEB costs (Note 4) 24,652 31,032
Regulatory liabilities - other (Note 4) 262,735 272,555
Operating reserves 2,892 5,006
Accrued environmental remediation costs (Note 14) 70,156 65,753
Other liabilities 31,299 45,491
Total Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 466,632 510,771
Accumulated Deferred Income Tax (Note 5) 314,601 284,875
Commitments and Contingencies
Total Capitalization and Liabilities $ 3,307,442 $ 2,975,083

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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CENTRAL HUDSON
STATEMENT OF EQUITY

(In Thousands, except share amounts)

Central Hudson Common Shareholders

Common
Stock Common Capital
Shares Stock Paid-In Stock Retained Total
Issued Amount Capital Expense  Earnings AQOCI* Equity

Balance at December 31, 2019 16,862,087 $ 84,311 $ 262,452 $§ (4,633) $ 430,457 $
Accounting Standard Adoption —
cumulative effect adjustment

(399) $ 772,188

(Note 1) (1,200) (1,200)
Net income 69,141 69,141
Capital contributions 12,000 12,000
Employee future benefits, net of tax 238 238
Balance at December 31, 2020 16,862,087 $ 84,311 $§ 274,452 $ (4,633) $§ 498,398 $ (161) $ 852,367
Net income 73,623 73,623
Capital contributions 6,000 6,000
Employee future benefits, net of tax 180 180
Balance at December 31, 2021 16,862,087 $ 84,311 $ 280,452 $ (4,633) $§ 572,021 $ 19 § 932,170
Net income 78,092 78,092
Capital contributions 46,000 46,000
Employee future benefits, net of tax 147 147

Balance at December 31, 2022 16,862,087 $§ 84,311 $§ 326,452 § (4,633) $§ 650,113 §

166 $ 1,056,409

*Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Corporate Structure

CH Energy Group is the holding company parent corporation of four principal, wholly owned
subsidiaries, Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation (“Central Hudson” or the “Company”), Central
Hudson Electric Transmission LLC (“CHET”), Central Hudson Enterprises Corporation (“CHEC”), and
Central Hudson Gas Transmission LLC (“CHGT”). CH Energy Group’s common stock is indirectly
owned by Fortis Inc. (“Fortis”), which is a leader in the North American regulated electric and gas utility
industry. Central Hudson is a regulated electric and natural gas transmission and distribution utility. CH
Energy Group formed CHET to hold its 6.1% ownership interest in New York Transco LLC (“Transco”).
CHGT was formed to hold CH Energy Group’s ownership stake in possible gas transmission pipeline
opportunities in New York State. As of December 31, 2022, there has been no activity in CHGT. CHEC
has ownership interests in certain non-regulated subsidiaries that are less than 100% owned.

Basis of Presentation

This Annual Financial Report is a combined report of CH Energy Group and Central Hudson. The
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements apply to both CH Energy Group and Central Hudson.
CH Energy Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of CH Energy Group and
its wholly owned subsidiaries, which include Central Hudson, CHET, CHGT and CHEC. All
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. CHEC's investments in
limited partnerships and limited liability companies and CHET’s investment in Transco are accounted
for under the equity method.

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”), which for regulated utilities, includes specific
accounting guidance for regulated operations.

Preparation of the financial statements in accordance with GAAP includes the use of estimates and
assumptions by management that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and the disclosures
of the contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Current estimates as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2022, reflect management’s best assumptions at this time. As with all estimates, actual
results may differ from those estimated. Estimates may be subject to future uncertainties, including the
continued impacts on Central Hudson’s service territory and customers resulting from legislative
mandates and policies, which could affect the allowance for uncollectible accounts.

Estimates are also reflected for certain commitments and contingencies, where there is sufficient basis
to project a future obligation. Disclosures related to these certain commitments and contingencies are
included in Note 14 - “Commitments and Contingencies”.

Regulatory Accounting Policies

Central Hudson is subject to cost-based rate regulation. As a result, the effects of regulatory actions are
required to be reflected in the financial statements. Regulatory accounting guidance results in
differences in the application of GAAP between regulated and non-regulated businesses and requires
the recording of regulatory assets and liabilities for certain transactions that would have been treated as
expense or revenue in non-regulated businesses. Regulated utilities, such as Central Hudson, defer
costs and revenues on the balance sheet as regulatory assets and liabilities when it is probable that
those costs and revenues will be recoverable/refundable through the rate-making process in a period
different from when they otherwise would have been reflected in income. For Central Hudson, these
deferred regulatory assets and liabilities and the related deferred taxes, are recovered from or
reimbursed to customers either by offset as directed by the PSC, through an approved surcharge
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mechanism or through incorporation in the determination of revenue requirement used to set new rates.
Changes in regulatory assets and liabilities are reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Income
either in the period in which the amounts are recovered through a surcharge, are reflected in rates or
when the criteria for recording the revenues are met. Current accounting practices reflect the regulatory
accounting authorized in Central Hudson’s most recent Rate Orders. On June 14, 2018, the PSC
issued an Order Approving Rate Plan in Cases 17-E-0459 and 17-G-0460 (the “2018 Rate Order”) and
on November 18, 2021, the PSC issued an Order Approving Rate Plan in Cases 20-E-0428 and 20-G-
0429 (the “2021 Rate Order”). On October 4, 2021, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
(“FERC”) approved Facilities Charge for System Deliverability Upgrades (“SDU”) under Rate Schedule
12 of the New York Independent System Operator (“NYISO”) to be collected via the Open Access
Transmission Tariff (“OATT”). See Note 4 — “Regulatory Matters” for additional information regarding
regulatory accounting.

Management periodically assesses whether the regulatory assets are probable of future recovery by
considering factors, such as changes in the applicable regulatory and political environments, the ability
to recover costs through regulated rates, recent rate orders to Central Hudson and other regulated
entities and the status of any pending or potential deregulation legislation. Based on this assessment,
management believes the existing regulatory assets are probable for recovery. This assessment
reflects the current political and regulatory climate at the state and federal levels and is subject to
change in the future. If future recovery of costs ceases to be probable, the regulatory asset would be
written off, which could materially impact earnings. Regulatory agencies can provide flexibility in the
manner and timing of recovery of regulatory assets.

Rates, Revenues, and Adjustment Mechanisms

Central Hudson'’s electric and natural gas retail rates are regulated by the PSC. Wholesale
transmission rates, facilities charges, and rates for electricity sold for resale in interstate commerce are
regulated by the FERC and are collected via the OATT administered by the NYISO or directly by the
Company.

Central Hudson'’s tariffs for retail electric and natural gas service include purchased electricity and
purchased natural gas cost adjustment mechanisms, by which electric and natural gas rates are set to
recover the actual purchased electricity and purchased natural gas costs, including hedging costs,
incurred in providing these services. In addition, the tariffs include adjustment mechanisms to recover
from or refund to customers certain revenues and costs that have been deferred such as RDMs, Rate
Moderators, incentives earned, or other Earnings Adjustment Mechanisms (“EAMs”) and other
specified accumulated deferred balances recovered via the RAM as defined in the Rate Orders. See
Note 4 — “Regulatory Matters” for definitions. RDMs generally provide the ability to record revenue
equal to revenue targets authorized by the PSC and used for the development of rates for most of
Central Hudson’s customers.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Central Hudson records revenue as electric and natural gas is delivered based on either the customers’
meter read or estimated usage for the month. For full-service customers, this includes delivery and
supply of electricity and natural gas. For retail choice customers, this includes delivery only as these
customers purchase supply from a retail marketer. Customers simultaneously receive and consume the
benefits provided by Central Hudson. Revenue consists of a fixed customer charge and a charge per
kilowatt hour (“kWh”) or 100 cubic feet (“Ccf’), that is fixed at the time of delivery. Additionally, certain
non-residential electric service customers pay a per KW demand charge which is also fixed at the time
of delivery. All performance obligations are satisfied for tariff sales at the time of delivery. Amounts
billed to customers are due within 20 days from the date the bill was rendered, and any payment not
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received by the due date is considered delinquent and incurs a late payment fee. Effective April 1,
2020, Central Hudson temporarily suspended finance charges on past due balances to help mitigate
the impacts of the Coronavirus pandemic (“COVID-19”) on our customers. The 2021 Rate Order
provided authorization to defer for future recovery from customers any over or under collection of
finance charges, including retroactive recovery of the amounts from 2020. As such, this suspension of
finance charges did not have an impact on earnings.

Central Hudson records an estimate of unbilled revenue for service rendered to customers after their
billing date and through the end of the month. Unbilled revenues are dependent on several factors that
require management’s judgment, including estimates of retail sales and customer usage patterns.

Central Hudson receives payments from certain customers based on a predetermined budget billing
schedule. Budget billing does not represent a contract asset or liability, but rather just a
receivable/liability because there are no further performance obligations required to be satisfied before
the Company has the right to collect/refund the customer’s consideration. Consideration is due when
control of the energy is transferred to the customer and is satisfied with the passage of time. Budget
billing liability balances are recorded within the customer advances line item in the balance sheet.

Central Hudson provides discounts through certain customer assistance programs intended to help low
to moderate income families manage their energy burden as prescribed in the 2021 Rate Order with a
full deferral mechanism. Discounts available under these programs are determined at the time the
performance obligation is satisfied and are recorded as an expense to match revenue collected in rates
for the benefit of eligible customers.

Alternative Revenues

In accordance with Accounting Standard Codification (“ASC”) 980 and as authorized by the PSC,
Central Hudson records alternative revenues in response to past activities or completed events, if
certain criteria are met. Central Hudson has identified alternative revenue programs in both its electric
and natural gas revenues. Alternative revenues are generally intended to compensate a regulated utility
for fluctuations in revenue due to weather abnormalities, external factors, and demand side initiatives
promoted by the regulator, as well as incentive awards if the utility achieves certain objectives, such as
reaching specified milestones associated with energy efficiency programs. Central Hudson recognizes
alternative revenues when the criteria defined in ASC 980 have been met and not when billed to
customers.

Other Revenues

Other revenues, which are not contract revenues, consist of pole attachment rents, finance charges,
miscellaneous fees, and other revenue adjustments. Included in other revenue adjustments is the
reversal of previously recognized deferrals as they are billed (collected/refunded to customers)
pursuant to PSC Orders.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

CH Energy Group and Central Hudson consider temporary cash investments with a maturity (when
purchased) of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash primarily consists of cash collected from developers and held in escrow related to a
SDU project pursuant to terms and conditions of the NYISO OATT.

-16 -



The following tables provide a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash reported on
the Balance Sheets for CH Energy Group and Central Hudson that sum to the total of the same such
amounts shown in the corresponding Statements of Cash Flows.

CH Energy Group
(In Thousands)

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,237 % 7,339
Restricted cash included in other long-term assets 1,773 10,790
Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash as shown in the
Statement of Cash Flows $ 5010 $ 18,129

Central Hudson
(In Thousands)

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,598 $ 3,751
Restricted cash included in other long-term assets 1,773 10,790
Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash as shown in the
Statement of Cash Flows $ 3,371 $ 14,541

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Receivables and unbilled utility revenues are carried at net realizable value, based on the allowance for
credit losses model. The accounts receivable balance also reflects Central Hudson’s purchase of
receivables from energy service companies to support the retail choice programs. The allowance for
uncollectible accounts reflects management’s best estimate of expected credit losses to reduce
accounts receivable for amounts estimated to be uncollectible. Estimates for uncollectible accounts are
based on accounts receivable aging data, as well as consideration of various quantitative and
qualitative factors, including special collection issues and current and forecasted economic conditions.
Finance charges can be charged on accounts receivable balances that have been outstanding for more
than 20 days. See Note 2 — “Revenues and Receivables” for a discussion of the impact of legislative
mandates instituted during the COVID-19 pandemic on finance charges and other revenue.

Financial Instruments

CH Energy Group and Central Hudson use reasonable and supportable forecasts in the estimate of
credit losses and the recognition of expected losses upon initial recognition of a financial instrument, in
addition to using past events and current conditions. On December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021,
there were no expected credit losses on financial instruments other than those on accounts receivable
and unbilled utility revenues.

Fuel, Materials, and Supplies

The following is a summary of CH Energy Group’s and Central Hudson’s inventory of Fuel, Materials,
and Supplies valued using the average cost method (In Thousands):

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
Fuel used in electric generation 434 491
Materials and supplies 30,804 23,625
Total $ 31,238 $ 24,116
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Effective August 1, 2020, Central Hudson entered into an Asset Management Agreement (“AMA”) with
a third party related to its natural gas transport and storage capacity. Central Hudson continues to
make purchases of natural gas in advance of the peak winter season to hedge against price volatility
for its customers. However, based on the terms of the agreement, the third party will maintain control
and title over the physical natural gas in storage until the end of the contract term. Amounts related to
the AMA are recorded in “Special deposits and prepayments” in CH Energy Group’s and Central
Hudson’s Balance Sheets.

Utility Plant - Central Hudson

The regulated assets of Central Hudson include electric, natural gas, and common assets, which are
listed under the heading “Utility Plant” on CH Energy Group’s Consolidated Balance Sheet and Central
Hudson’s Balance Sheet. The accumulated depreciation associated with these regulated assets is also
reported on the Balance Sheets.

The cost of additions to the utility plant and replacements of retired units of property are capitalized at
original cost. Capitalized costs include labor, materials and supplies, indirect charges for items such as
transportation, certain administrative costs, certain taxes, service cost components of pension and
other employee benefits, and allowances for funds used during construction (“AFUDC”), less
contributions in aid of construction.

AFUDC is defined as the net cost of borrowed funds used for construction purposes and a reasonable
rate on other funds when so used. The concurrent credit for the amount so capitalized is reported in the
Consolidated Statement of Income as follows: the portion applicable to borrowed funds is reported as a
reduction of interest charges, while the portion applicable to other funds (the equity component) is
reported as other income. AFUDC rates are determined in accordance with FERC and PSC
regulations. The AFUDC rates were 3.7% in 2022, 6.2% in 2021, and 5.95% in 2020.

The replacement of minor items of property is included in operating expenses. The original cost of
property, together with removal cost less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation at the time
the property is retired and removed from service as required by the PSC.

For additional information see Note 3 — “Utility Plant — Central Hudson.”
Depreciation and Amortization

Central Hudson’s depreciation and amortization provisions are computed on the straight-line method
using PSC-approved rates. The anticipated costs of removing assets upon retirement are generally
provided for over the life of those assets as a component of depreciation expense and, for regulatory
reporting purposes, are reflected in accumulated depreciation until the costs are incurred, which is
consistent with industry practice. Current accounting guidance related to asset retirement precludes the
recognition of expected future retirement obligations as a component of depreciation expense or
accumulated depreciation. Central Hudson, however, is required to use depreciation methods and rates
approved by the PSC under regulatory accounting. Central Hudson reclassifies the cost of removal
recovered more than amounts incurred to date from accumulated depreciation to regulatory liabilities
for presentation in its Balance Sheet in accordance with GAAP.

Central Hudson performs depreciation studies periodically and, upon approval by the PSC, adjusts the
depreciation rates of its various classes of depreciable property. Central Hudson’s composite rates for
depreciation, inclusive of intangible amortization, were 2.99% in 2022, 2.92% in 2021, and in 2020 was
2.90% of the original average cost of depreciable property. The ratio of the amount of accumulated
depreciation to the original cost of the depreciable property at December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020 was
23.5%, 23.0%, and 23.3%, respectively.
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Asset Retirement Obligations

Central Hudson records Asset Retirement Obligations (“AROs”) for the incremental removal costs,
resulting from legal and environmental obligations associated with the retirement of certain utility plant
assets, as a liability at fair value with a corresponding increase to utility capital assets, in the period in
which the costs are known and estimable. The fair value of AROs is based on an estimate of the
present value of expected future cash outlays, discounted at a credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate.
AROs are adjusted at the end of each reporting period to accrete the liability for the passage of time
and record any changes in the estimated future cash flows of the incremental obligation. Accretion and
depreciation expenses associated with AROs are recorded as regulatory assets. Actual costs incurred
reduce the liability. The regulatory assets for accretion and depreciation are recovered through the
accumulated depreciation reserve upon the retirement of the asset.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Central Hudson reviews long-lived assets for impairment at least annually. Asset-impairment testing at
the regulated utilities is carried out at the enterprise level to determine if assets are impaired. The
recovery of regulated assets’ carrying value, including a fair rate of return, is provided through customer
electricity and natural gas delivery rates approved by the PSC. The net cash flows for regulated entities
are not asset-specific but are pooled for the entire regulated utility.

Leases

Beginning on January 1, 2019, when a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration, a right-of-use asset and lease liability are
recognized. Central Hudson measures the right-of-use asset and lease liability at the present value of
future lease payments, excluding variable payments based on usage or performance. Central Hudson
calculates the present value using a lease-specific secured borrowing rate based on the remaining
lease term. Central Hudson has elected the practical expedient to combine lease components (e.g.
rent, real estate taxes, and insurance costs) and non-lease components (e.g. common area
maintenance costs) and account for them as a single lease component. Central Hudson includes
options to extend a lease in the lease term when it is reasonably certain that the option will be
exercised. Leases with a term, including renewal options, of twelve months or less are not recorded on
the balance sheet.

Research and Development

Central Hudson is engaged in the conduct and support of research and development (“R&D”) activities
that are focused on the improvement of existing energy technologies and the development of new
technologies for the delivery and customer use of energy. R&D expenditures are provided for in Central
Hudson’s rates charged to customers for electric and natural gas delivery service, with any differences
between actual R&D expense and the rate allowances deferred for future recovery from or return to
customers. See Note 7 — “Research and Development” for additional details.

Debt Issuance Costs

Expenses incurred in connection with CH Energy Group’s or Central Hudson’s debt issuance and any
discount or premium on debt are deferred and amortized over the lives of the related issues. When
long-term debt is reacquired or redeemed, regulatory accounting permits the deferral of related
unamortized debt expense and reacquisition costs to be amortized over the remaining original life of the
debt retired. The amortization of debt costs for reacquired debt is incorporated in the revenue
requirement for delivery rates as authorized by the PSC. See Note 11 — “Capitalization — Long-Term
Debt” for additional details.

-19 -



Income Tax

CH Energy Group and its subsidiaries file consolidated federal income tax returns with FortisUS Inc.
(“FortisUS”) and, depending on the state, either standalone or consolidated state income tax returns.
Income taxes are deferred for all temporary differences between the financial statement and the tax
basis of assets and liabilities, under the asset and liability method in accordance with current
accounting guidance for income taxes. Certain deferred income taxes are recorded with offsetting
regulatory assets or liabilities by Central Hudson to recognize that income taxes will be recovered or
refunded through future rates. For federal and state income tax purposes, CH Energy Group and its
subsidiaries use an accelerated method of depreciation and generally use the shortest life permitted for
each class of assets. Central Hudson follows the normalization method of accounting, which spreads
the tax benefits associated with utility assets over the same time period that the costs of those assets
are recovered from customers. Normalization is required as a prerequisite for utilities claiming
accelerated depreciation and certain tax credits. Deferred investment tax credits are amortized over the
estimated life of the properties giving rise to the credits. For state income tax purposes, Central Hudson
uses book depreciation for property placed in service in 1999 or earlier in accordance with transition
property rules under Article 9-A of the New York State Tax Law. See Note 5 — “Income Tax” for
additional information regarding income taxes and the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.

Post-Employment and Other Benefits

Central Hudson sponsors a noncontributory Retirement Income Plan (“Retirement Plan”) for all
management, professional, and supervisory employees hired before January 1, 2008 and for all Union
employees hired before May 1, 2008. Benefits are based on years of service and compensation.
Additionally, Central Hudson maintains a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (“SERP”) for certain
members of management. Central Hudson also provides OPEB plans, which include certain health
care and life insurance benefits for retirees hired within the same time periods as stated above.

Central Hudson recognizes the funded status of the Retirement Plan and SERP (collectively “Pension”)
and OPEB defined benefit plans on its balance sheet. The funded status is measured as the difference
between the fair value of qualified plans’ assets and the projected benefit obligation (“PBQO”) for the
plans. The Pension funded status includes the SERP PBO although it does not take into consideration
the SERP trust assets. The SERP is a non-qualified plan under the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act guidelines and therefore, although funded annually to achieve 110% of the plan’s
accumulated benefit obligation, the trust assets of this plan are not included in the calculation of the
funded status for accounting purposes. Central Hudson recognizes a regulatory liability or asset for the
portion of the over or underfunded amount that is probable of return to or recovery from customers in
future rates. The amounts reported as a component of other comprehensive income, net of tax, relate
to a former Central Hudson officer who transferred to an affiliated company. The related amounts are
charged to and reimbursed by the affiliated company.

Pension and OPEB benefit expenses are determined by actuarial valuations based on assumptions
that Central Hudson evaluates annually. Central Hudson capitalizes a portion of the service cost
component. The PSC has authorized deferral accounting treatment for any variations between actual
Pension and OPEB expenses and the amount included in the current delivery rate structure.
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Any unamortized balances related to net actuarial gains and losses, past service costs, and transitional
obligations, which are recoverable from Central Hudson customers and would otherwise be recognized
in accumulated other comprehensive income, are subject to deferral accounting treatment.

Central Hudson also sponsors a contributory 401(k) retirement plan (“401(k) plan”) for its employees.
The 401(k) plan provides for employee tax-deferred salary deductions for participating employees as
well as employer contributions.

For more information see Note 12 — “Post-Employment Benefits”.

Additionally, Central Hudson sponsors a contributory Deferred Compensation Plan (“Deferred
Compensation Plan”) for certain members of management and members of the Central Hudson Board
of Directors. Although the Deferred Compensation Plan is a non-qualified plan, Central Hudson has
established a trust for funding the associated liability to participants. For more information, see Note 17
— “Other Fair Value Measurements”.

Equity-Based Compensation

Officers of CH Energy Group and Central Hudson were granted Share Unit Plan shares (“SUPs”) under
various plans as part of the officers’ long-term incentives. Compensation expense and the related
liability associated with the SUPs are recorded based on the fair value at each reporting date until
settlement, reflecting expected future payout and time elapsed within the terms of the award, typically
at the end of the three-year vesting period. The fair value of the SUPs’ liability is based on Fortis’
common share 5-day volume weighted average trading price at the end of each reporting period. CH
Energy Group and Central Hudson have elected to recognize forfeitures when they occur due to the
limited number of participants in the equity-based compensation plans. For more information, see Note
13 — “Equity-Based Compensation”.

Common Stock Dividends

CH Energy Group’s ability to pay dividends is affected by the ability of its subsidiaries to pay dividends.
The Federal Power Act limits the payment of annual dividends by Central Hudson to its retained
earnings. More restrictive is the PSC’s limit on the dividends Central Hudson may pay to CH Energy
Group. See Note 10 — “Capitalization-Common and Preferred Stock” for additional information. CH
Energy Group’s other subsidiaries do not have express restrictions on their ability to pay dividends.

Derivatives

From time to time, Central Hudson enters into derivative contracts in conjunction with the Company’s
enterprise risk management program to hedge certain risk exposures related to its business operations.
Central Hudson uses derivative contracts to reduce the impact of volatility in the supply prices of natural
gas and electricity and to hedge exposure to volatility in interest rates for its variable rate long-term
debt. Central Hudson records all derivatives at fair value with certain exceptions including those
derivatives that qualify for the normal purchase exception. The fair value of derivative instruments are
estimates of the amounts that Central Hudson would receive or have to pay to terminate the
outstanding contracts at the balance sheet dates. Unrealized gains and losses on Central Hudson’s
derivative contracts have no impact on earnings since the energy contracts are subject to regulatory
deferral.

Realized gains and losses on Central Hudson’s derivative instruments are returned to or recovered
from customers through PSC-authorized deferral accounting mechanisms, with no material impact on
cash flows, results of operations, or liquidity. Realized gains and losses on Central Hudson’s energy
derivative instruments and all associated costs are reported as part of purchased natural gas and
purchased electricity in CH Energy Group’s and Central Hudson’s Statements of Income as the
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corresponding amounts are either recovered from or returned to customers through fuel cost
adjustment mechanisms in revenues. See Note 16 — “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities” for further details.

Normal Purchases and Normal Sales

Central Hudson enters into forward energy purchase contracts, including options, with counterparties
that have generating capacity to support current load forecasts or counterparties that can meet Central
Hudson’s load serving obligations. Central Hudson has elected the normal purchase exception for
these contracts, which are not required to be measured at fair value and are accounted for on an
accrual basis. See Note 14 — “Commitments and Contingencies” for further details.

Reclassification

Certain amounts shown in Note 4 — “Regulatory Matter” and Note 5 — “Income Tax” related to the prior
year, have been reclassified to conform to the 2022 presentation. These reclassifications had no effect
on the reported results of operations.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
Income Taxes

Effective January 1, 2021, CH Energy Group and Central Hudson adopted Accounting Standards
Update (“ASU”) No. 2019-12, Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes, which simplifies the
accounting for income taxes by eliminating certain exceptions to the guidance in ASC 740, Income
Taxes, related to the approach for intra-period tax allocation, the methodology for calculating income
taxes in an interim period and the recognition of deferred tax liabilities for outside basis differences. The
new guidance also simplified aspects of the accounting for franchise taxes and enacted changes in tax
laws or rates and clarifies the accounting for transactions that result in a step-up in the tax basis of
goodwill. CH Energy Group and its subsidiaries’ earnings, financial position, cash flows, and
disclosures were not impacted by this adoption.

Note 2 - Revenues and Receivables

Central Hudson disaggregates revenue by segment (electric and natural gas operations) and by
revenue type (revenue from contract with customers, alternative revenue programs, and other
revenue).

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Central Hudson records revenue as electricity and natural gas is delivered based on either the
customers’ meter read or estimated usage for the month. For full-service customers, this includes
delivery and supply of electricity and natural gas. For retail choice customers, this includes delivery only
as these customers purchase supply from a retail marketer. Sales and usage-based taxes are excluded
from revenues. Consideration received from customers on a billing schedule is not adjusted for the
effect of a significant finance component because the period between a transfer of goods or services
will be one year or less.

Alternative Revenues
Central Hudson'’s alternative revenue programs include electric and natural gas RDMs, the electric and

natural gas make whole provision, and lost finance charges, as established in the 2021 Rate Order,
Gas Merchant Function Charge lost revenue, revenue requirement effect for incremental Leak Prone
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Pipe (“LPP”) miles replaced above the PSC targets and the revenue requirement effect for Gas Safety
Ruling compliance. In addition, Central Hudson records alternative revenues related to Positive
Revenue Adjustments (“PRA”) and EAMs related to New York State clean energy goals, when
prescribed targets are met.

Other Revenues

Other revenues consist of pole attachment rents, finance charges, miscellaneous fees, and other
revenue adjustments. Included in other revenue adjustments are changes to regulatory deferral
balances to reverse the impact of refunds (collections) of previously recognized deferrals and Negative
Revenue Adjustments (“NRAs”) pursuant to PSC Orders.

The following summary presents CH Energy Group’s and Central Hudson’s operating revenues
disaggregated by segment and revenue source (In Thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

Electric 2022 2021 2020
Revenues from Contracts with Customers (ASC 606) $ 787,340 $ 596,007 $ 547,586
Alternative Revenues (Non-ASC 606) (2,967) (10,887) (18,268)
Other Revenue Adjustments (Non-ASC 606) 13,239 38,703 22,684
Total Operating Revenues Electric $ 797,612 $ 623,823 $ 552,002
Natural Gas
Revenues from Contracts with Customers (ASC 606) $ 218,238 $ 170,233 $ 155,391
Alternative Revenues (Non-ASC 606) 7,394 8,484 9,281
Other Revenue Adjustments (Non-ASC 606) (4,888) (6,292) (4,779)
Total Operating Revenues Natural Gas $ 220,744  $ 172,425 $ 159,893

The year over year increase in electric and natural gas revenues from contracts with customers was
primarily driven by higher billed purchased commodity costs. Further impacting these increases were
higher delivery rates effective July 1, 2022, and higher surcharges when compared to 2021. The
increases in billed purchased electric and natural gas do not impact earnings due to full deferral of
commodity costs. However, these increases have contributed to increases in accounts receivable
balances from customers, which is further discussed below.

The increase in electric and natural gas alternative revenue programs year over year is due to lower
RDM deferral recorded for the difference between the actual billed revenues compared to the Rate
Order prescribed targets. Also contributing to the increase in electric alternative revenue programs are
higher incentives earned for achieving certain targets and milestones associated with energy efficiency
programs.

The year over year decrease in other electric revenue adjustments is due to the lower amount refunded
to customers for previously deferred revenues in excess of prescribed targets. Further impacting the
year over year decrease are bill credits provided to customers in the first half of 2022 when compared
to bill credits in 2021.

The year over year increase in other natural gas revenue adjustments is due to lower recovery for

previously deferred revenues below prescribed targets, partially offset by lower gas bill credits in 2022
when compared to 2021.
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Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Accounts receivable are recorded net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts based on the
allowance for credit losses model. A summary of all changes in the allowance for uncollectible accounts
receivable and accrued unbilled utility revenue balance is as follows (In Thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2022 2021
Balance at Beginning of Period $ (11,200) $ (10,400)
Uncollectible expense (8,170) (6,075)
Uncollectible write-off deferral (4,130) -
Uncollectible write-offs - net 12,300 5,275
Balance at End of Period $ (11,200) $ (11,200)

Accounts receivable balances from customers overall have continued to increase in the current period,
not only in the current and 30-day past due categories, but also within arrears that are greater than 60
days past due. Growth in arrears began with the suspension of collection efforts required during
COVID-19, which has impacted customers’ payment behavior. This has been further compounded by
increased commodity prices and higher seasonal winter energy usage in the first and fourth quarters.
Management conducted quantitative and qualitative assessments of the allowance, including
consideration of the differences in the current customers with arrears compared to past history,
differences in payment behaviors of customers, including past economic factors impacting payment
behavior compared to the current economic environment, as well as legislative and governmental
actions taken to provide relief and assistance to customers financially impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic. Central Hudson continues to proactively contact customers regarding past due balances and
to advise them of financial assistance programs available and is also working with local agencies and
municipalities to obtain funding for its customers through federal and state programs. On June 16,
2022, the PSC approved Phase 1 of the AMP, in which residential utility customers who receive
income-qualified government assistance for utility bills and other expenses and have past-due balances
for service through May 1, 2022, will have those balances forgiven. For further details of this program
see Note 4 — “Regulatory Matters-PSC Proceedings.” On January 19, 2023, the PSC approved Phase
2 of the AMP providing arrears relief for certain residential and small commercial customers with
arrears balances as of May 1, 2022, which were not eligible in Phase 1. The arrears amounts will be
filed with Staff by February 18, 2023, together with Phase 2 Outreach and Education Plans. Central
Hudson has begun collection efforts for certain customers with large arrears balances through
communications, urging payment, and notifying customers that finance charges and termination efforts
will be forthcoming. These efforts have generated some success with payments or payment
arrangements. Central Hudson will continue its collections outreach, expanding the number of
customers and commencing finance charges and termination efforts in 2023. Under the terms of the
2021 Rate Order, Central Hudson is authorized to defer bad debt write-offs if they exceed 10 basis
points above the amounts billed to customers through delivery rates and applicable surcharges. For the
year ended December 31, 2022, accounts written off as uncollectible exceeded the 10 basis points
prescribed in rates and, as such, Central Hudson has deferred $4.1 million in uncollectible write-offs.
Based on the analysis and taking all qualitative factors into consideration, the Company concluded that
the reserve of $11.2 million should be maintained as of December 31, 2022. Clarity on Phase 2 AMP
impacts, along with the continued collection efforts, particularly termination for non-payment, will
provide visibility as to the timeframe over which the arrears growth will be resolved. The increase in
arrears has resulted in a corresponding growth in working capital needs to support the business
through additional borrowings as further discussed in Note 9 - "Short-Term Borrowing Arrangements"
and Note 11 - "Capitalization - Long-Term Debt".
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NOTE 3 - Utility Plant - Central Hudson

The following summarizes the type and amount of assets included in the electric, natural gas and
common categories of Central Hudson'’s utility plant balances (In Thousands):

Estimated Utility Plant
Depreciable December 31, December 31,
Life in Years 2022 2021
Electric:
Production 25-95 $ 43,767 $ 43,719
Transmission 30-90 469,800 449,054
Distribution 8-80 1,247,465 1,187,608
Other 40 7,060 6,910
Total $ 1,768,092 $ 1,687,291
Natural Gas:
Transmission 19-85 $ 64,679 $ 63,284
Distribution 28-95 723,857 670,439
Other N/A 442 442
Total $ 788,978 $ 734,165
Common:
Land and structures 50 $ 114,656 $ 113,200
Office and other equipment, radios, and tools 8-35 87,303 85,404
Transportation equipment 10-12 82,520 78,349
Other 3-15 164,317 149,017
Total $ 448,796 $ 425,970
Gross Utility Plant $ 3,005,866 $ 2,847,426

The borrowed component of funds used during construction and recorded as a reduction of interest
expense was $2.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 and $1.5 million for each of the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. There was no equity component reported as other income for the
year ended December 31, 2022 and $3.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2021, and 2020,
respectively.

Included in the Net Utility Plant balance of $2.5 billion and $2.3 billion at December 31, 2022 and 2021
was $195.0 million and $181.0 million of intangible utility plant assets, comprised primarily of computer
software costs, land, transmission, water, and other rights and the related accumulated amortization of
$95.9 million and $78.5 million, respectively. Amortization expense for the years 2023-2027 is estimated
to be $16.3 million, $13.1 million, $9.0 million, $7.2 million and $5.4 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, Central Hudson has reclassified from accumulated depreciation
$47 .4 million and $42.8 million, respectively, of cost of removal recovered through the rate-making
process in excess of amounts incurred to date as a regulatory liability.

AROs for Central Hudson were approximately $3.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021. These amounts have been classified in the above chart under “Electric - Other” and “Common -
Other” based on the nature of the ARO and are reflected as “Other - long-term liabilities” in the CH
Energy Group and Central Hudson Balance Sheets.
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NOTE 4 — Regulatory Matters
Summary of Regulatory Assets and Liabilities
Based on previous, existing or expected regulatory orders or decisions, the following table sets forth

amounts that are expected to be recovered from or refunded to customers in future periods (In
Thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Regulatory Assets:
Deferred purchased electric costs (Note 1) $ 43490 $ 17,319
Deferred purchased natural gas costs (Note 1) 16,923 8,057
Deferred unrealized losses on derivatives - electric and natural gas (Note 16) 14,034 7,563
RAM - electric 16,109 15,258
RAM - natural gas 1,560 3,397
EAM - electric 7,140 3,570
RDM and carrying charges - electric 2,064 84 @
RDM and carrying charges - natural gas 4,511 2,942
Energy efficiency programs 28,829 16,819
Demand management programs 7,359 8,809
Deferred and accrued costs - SIR (Note 14) 71,436 76,032
Deferred storm costs 41,846 13,742
Deferred vacation pay accrual 9,010 9,753
Income taxes recoverable through future rates 42,704 35,784
Tax reform - unprotected impacts (Note 5) 23,733 23,733
Lost finance charge revenue 2,746 -
AMP and carrying charges 3,102 -
Uncollectible write-offs 4,130 -
Other 11,323 10,470 (V@
Total Regulatory Assets $ 352,049 $ 253,332
Less: Current Portion of Regulatory Assets $ 125980 § 78,849
Total Long-term Regulatory Assets $ 226,069 $ 174,483
Regqulatory Liabilities:

Rate moderator - electric $ 16,376 $ 19,371
Rate moderator - natural gas 8,739 10,115
Deferred unrealized gains on derivatives - electric and natural gas (Note 16) 315 1,768
CEF and carrying charges 49,027 52,584
Tax reform - protected deferred tax liability (Note 5) 176,075 179,900
Deferred cost of removal (Note 3) 47,357 42,794
Deferred pension costs (Note 12) 74,898 90,934
Income taxes refundable through future rates 10,711 9,027
Deferred OPEB costs (Note 12) 24,652 31,032
Energy affordability program 4,428 5,289
Fast charging infrastructure program and carrying charges 5,516 5,455
NRAs 2,597 -
Deferred unbilled revenue 5,082 5,082
Utility asset sale to Transco 4,338 -
Other 7,227 O 4,626
Total Regulatory Liabilities $ 437,338 $ 457,977
Less: Current Portion of Regulatory Liabilities $ 75,053 $ 63,456
Total Long-term Regulatory Liabilities $ 362,285 $ 394,521
Net Regulatory Liabilities $ (85,289) $ (204,645)

(1) Other includes estimated netting on the balance sheet of certain regulatory asset carrying charges to be offset against regulatory liabilities
and collected through Rate Case offset/RAM.

(2) Certain amounts included in Other related to prior periods, have been reclassified to conform to the December 31, 2022 presentation.
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The significant regulatory assets and liabilities include:

RAM: Mechanism prescribed in the 2018 Rate Order and continued in the 2021 Rate Order to recover
from or refund to customers previously deferred balances related to major storms, energy efficiency
programs, and environmental site investigation and remediation costs in excess of the three-year
cumulative rate allowance, incentives earned, unencumbered NRAs, deferred property taxes and
accrued carrying charges.

RDM and carrying charges: Mechanism prescribed in the 2018 Rate Order and continued in the 2021
Rate Order to recover from or refund to customers difference between actual revenues and forecasted
revenues.

EAMs: Earnings adjustment mechanisms to be recovered from customers for incentives earned related
to energy efficiency targets met as prescribed in the 2018 Rate Order and continued in the 2021 Rate
Order.

Energy Efficiency Programs: This regulatory asset/liability represents amounts spent on Central
Hudson’s internally administered programs either below or in excess of amounts collected in rates.

Demand Management Programs: This regulatory asset represents deferred balances for costs incurred
and incentives earned in excess of amounts collected related to Central Hudson’s Non-Wires Alternative
and Dynamic Load Management initiatives.

Deferred Storm Costs: Central Hudson’s rates include a collection of funds for a major storm reserve,
which are deferred as an offset against incremental costs incurred for major storm restoration.
Incremental costs incurred in excess of the reserve funds are authorized to be collected via the RAM, to
the extent sufficient.

Lost Finance Charge Revenue: This regulatory asset represents finance charge and reconnection fee
revenues below the levels included in rates due to the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic as prescribed
in the 2021 Rate Order.

AMP and carrying charges: This regulatory asset represents the deferral of amounts credited to low-
income customers, net of funding from New York State, which is being collected through a surcharge
effective August 1, 2022, as approved by the PSC in the under Case 20-M-0479.

Uncollectible Write-Offs: This regulatory asset represents the deferral of uncollectible write-offs above
levels included in rates as they exceeded the threshold prescribed in the 2021 Rate Order.

Deferred Vacation Pay Accrual: In accordance with Rate Order 84-2 a regulatory asset has been
established to offset the accrued vacation liability since the accrued compensation is included in future
allowable costs on an as paid basis and there is reasonable assurance of recovery.

Income Taxes Recoverable: This regulatory asset has been established to offset certain deferred tax
liabilities because Central Hudson believes it is probable that they will be recoverable from customers.

Rate Moderator — Electric and Natural Gas: This regulatory liability balance represents the net balance
after offset under the terms of the 2018 and 2021 Rate Orders, which were and will be used for future
customer rate moderation, as well as deferred Danskammer Generating Station delivery revenues for
future natural gas rate moderation.

CEF: This regulatory liability represents amounts collected from customers primarily under the CEF, the
Renewable Portfolio Standards and System Benefit Charge (as prescribed in the CEF, 2018 and 2021
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Rate Orders), in excess of amounts remitted to the New York State Energy Research and Development
Authority (“NYSERDA”) to fund its energy efficiency programs.

Income Taxes Refundable: This regulatory liability was established to offset certain deferred tax assets
because Central Hudson believes it is probable that the related balances will be refundable to customers.

Energy Affordability Program: This regulatory liability represents deferred balances for amounts collected
in excess of credits provided for energy affordability programs.

Net Plant and Depreciation Targets: This regulatory liability represents a deferral of the revenue
requirement effect of net plant in service and depreciation expense below the defined targets as
prescribed in the 2018 Rate Order.

Fast Charging Infrastructure Program and carrying charges: This regulatory liability represents amounts
provided by NYSERDA and collected from customers to fund the fast-charging stations’ annual incentive
payments, as prescribed in the related Order.

Utility Asset Sale to Transco: This regulatory liability represents the gain on the sale of a utility asset to
Transco, which has been deferred for the benefit of customers in accordance with Case 22-E-0077.

Deferred Unbilled Electric and Natural Gas Revenue: On July 20, 2016, the PSC issued the “Order
Approving Accounting Change with Modification”, allowing Central Hudson to realize unbilled revenue as
revenue on the income statement, but required that $5.1 million of unbilled revenues remain as a
regulatory liability.

In terms of the expected timing for recovery, regulatory asset balances reflect the following amounts (In
Thousands):

December 31,

2022 2021
Balances with offsetting accrued liability balances recoverable when future costs
are actually incurred:
Income taxes recoverable through future rates $ 42704 % 35,784
Deferred unrealized losses on derivatives - electric 13,075 7,563
Deferred unrealized losses on derivatives - natural gas 959 -
Accrued SIR costs 69,832 71,653
Deferred ARO 823 583
Deferred vacation pay accrual 9,010 9,753
Other - 404
$ 136,403 $ 125,740
Balances earning a return via inclusion in rates and/or the application of carrying
charges:
Energy efficiency programs $ 28,829 $ 16,819
Uncollectible write-offs 4,130 -
Deferred storm costs 41,846 13,742
Deferred SIR costs, net of recoveries 1,604 4,379
Deferred debt expense on re-acquired debt 1,246 1,508
Tax reform - unprotected impacts 23,733 23,733
Other 6,072 4,814
$ 107,460 §$ 64,995
Subject to current recovery:
Deferred purchased electric costs $ 43,490 $ 17,319
Deferred purchased natural gas costs 16,923 8,057
RAM - electric and natural gas 17,669 18,655
EAM - electric and natural gas 7,140 4,102
RDM - electric and natural gas 6,575 3,027

-28 -



Demand management programs(" 7,359 8,809

Lost finance charge revenue 2,746 -
AMP and carrying charges 3,102 -
Other 4,562 2,830

$ 109,566 $ 62,799

Accumulated carrying charges:

Carrying charges balancing $ (1,380) $ (218)
Other - 16

$ (1,380) $ (202)

Total Regulatory Assets $ 352,049 $§ 253,332

(1) These amounts are subject to recovery over prescribed PSC timeframes unique to each program (most over 5 or 10 years). Balances
subject to recovery over a period greater than 1 year are authorized to earn carrying charges at the pre-tax weighted average cost of
capital.

PSC Proceedings

2018 Rate Order / 2021 Rate Order

The 2018 Rate Order was effective July 1, 2018, with Rate Year (“RY”) 1 through 3, when used in
connection with the 2018 Rate Order, defined as the twelve months ending June 30, 2019, June 30,
2020 and June 30, 2021, respectively.

On June 11, 2020, the Commission issued an Order Postponing Approved Electric and Gas Delivery
Rate Increases, which approved Central Hudson'’s petition to ease the financial impact on customers
during the critical months of the COVID-19 pandemic. The Order postponed, for three months, Central
Hudson’s approved RY3 electric and natural gas delivery rate increases scheduled to take effect on July
1 to October 1, 2020, with the forgone revenues recovered over the remaining nine months of the rate
year ending June 30, 2021. The Order also stated that no carrying charges would be applied to the
delayed recovery of these revenues and that Central Hudson would adjust the RDM targets to be
consistent with the delayed electric and natural gas delivery rate increase implementation.

The 2021 Rate Order adopts the terms set forth in the August 24, 2021 Joint Proposal. The 2021 Rate
Order also fully resolves all issues associated with the Sales Tax Refund Proceeding (Case 20-M-0134).
The 2021 Rate Order was effective December 1, 2021 and includes a make-whole provision that
provides new rates to become effective retroactive to July 1, 2021, with RY1, RY2, and RY3 defined as
the twelve months ending June 30, 2022, June 30, 2023, and June 30, 2024, respectively.

A summary of the key terms of the 2018 and 2021 Rate Orders are as follows:

2018 Rate Order (Dollars in Millions) 2021 Rate Order (Dollars in Millions)

Description RY1 RY2 RY3 RY1 RY2 RY3
Electric delivery rate increase/(decrease) $19.7 $18.6 $25.1 ($3.1) $19.5 $20.7
Natural gas delivery rate increases $6.7 $6.7 $8.2 $4.7 $6.3 $6.4
Return on equity 8.80% 8.80% 8.80% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
Earnings sharing Yes() Yes™" Yes" Yes® Yes® Yes®
Capital structure — common equity 48% 49% 50% 50% 49% 48%
Bill credits/(surcharge) - electric $6.0 $9.0 $11.0 ($2.0) $9.5 $21.5
Bill credits - natural gas $3.5 $4.0 $4.0 $0.8 $3.2 $5.6
RDMs — electric and natural gas Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

(1) Return on equity ("ROE") > 9.3% and up to 9.8%, is shared 50% to customers, > 9.8% and up to 10.3%, is shared 80% to customers, and
> 10.3% is shared 90% to customers.

(2) ROE >9.5% and up to 10.0%, is shared 50% to customers, > 10.0% and up to 10.5%, is shared 75% to customers, and > 10.5% is
shared 90% to customers.

-29-



The 2021 Rate Order utilizes existing regulatory balances to reduce bill impacts for customers during
the term of the agreement. The 2021 Rate Order also reflects a postponement of certain capital
projects, as well as reductions to operations and maintenance (“O&M”) costs to help manage customer
bill impacts. The total electric revenue (decrease)/increase (after bill credits) is (0.2%), 1.2%, and 1.2%
for RY1 through RY3, respectively and the total natural gas revenue increase (after bill credits) is 1.9%,
1.8%, and 1.8% for RY1 through RY3, respectively. The rate plan also includes an allowed ROE of
9.0% and an equity ratio of 50%, 49%, and 48% for RY1 through RY3, respectively.

The 2021 Rate Order:

establishes the Company’s future energy infrastructure investments, programs, and operations;

o stabilizes electric delivery rates in the first year with a slight decrease for residential customers;
reflects modest increases in gas delivery rates producing bill impacts just under two percent
each RY;

¢ includes increased electric bill discounts for income qualified households and expanded access
into Central Hudson’s Energy Affordability Program;

o reflects investments in clean energy efficiency ground and air-source electric heat pumps,
electric vehicle charging, and system upgrades that support utilization of renewable sources;

¢ implements ten EAMs, which reflect a maximum earnings potential of 100 basis points;
maintains the current Customer Average Interruption Duration Index (“CAIDI”) metric and
reflects increasingly stringent System Average Interruption Frequency Index (“SAIFI”) targets,
continues and further enhances existing gas safety performance metrics and public safety
programs and includes higher performance requirements for Customer Service Performance
Indicators with a net increase in total potential NRAs;

e provides Central Hudson with necessary resources to support ongoing O&M and necessary
investments to reinforce electric and gas system reliability and resiliency through storm
hardening, expanded vegetation management/tree trimming, continued investment for LPP
replacement or elimination and deployment of new technologies, as well as information
technology systems to further protect against cyber security risks; and

e includes several deferrals that provide the Company authorization to defer COVID-19
Incremental O&M Costs net of savings, lost revenues (finance charges and reconnection fee
revenues), and uncollectible write-offs.

Central Hudson 2021 Financing Order

On November 18, 2021, the Commission approved the Company's request under Section 69 of the
Public Service Law authorizing Central Hudson to enter into multi-year credit agreements in an
aggregate amount not to exceed $250 million; and approval to issue and sell new long-term debt from
time to time through December 31, 2024, in an aggregate amount not to exceed $445.7 million,
including $412 million for traditional utility purposes and up to $33.7 million to refinance its variable
interest debt. Central Hudson filed a letter indicating its unconditional acceptance of the November 18,
2021 Order on December 6, 2021.

FERC SDU Proceeding

On December 31, 2019, Central Hudson submitted to FERC a new rate schedule pursuant to Rate
Schedule 12 of the NYISO OATT to establish a Facilities Charge for SDUs being installed on Central
Hudson’s transmission facilities, which are required to provide four large generating facility developers
with capacity resource interconnection service. This charge provides Central Hudson with full recovery
of all reasonably incurred costs related to the development, construction, operation, and maintenance
of the SDU and a reasonable return on its investment. Project costs to be recovered by Central Hudson
and allocated to the Load Serving Entities (“LSES”) pursuant to Rate Schedule 12 of the NYISO OATT
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are expected to be approximately $2.6 million plus operation, maintenance, and other applicable costs
and will be updated annually. On October 4, 2021, the FERC approved an ROE of 9.4% plus a 50 basis
point adder for a total ROE of 9.9% associated with this project.

August 2020 Tropical Storm Isaias

On August 5, 2020, the New York State Governor instituted proceeding 20-01633 directing the
Commission to initiate an investigation of certain New York State utilities’ responses to Tropical Storm
Isaias, which impacted Central Hudson’s service territory on August 4, 2020. On November 19, 2020,
DPS issued an interim Storm Report setting forth preliminary findings, including purported failures by
the identified utilities to comply with their respective Commission approved Emergency Response Plans
and Show Cause (“Storm Show Cause Order”) that initiated proceedings against Central Hudson and
the other utilities. The Show Cause Order identified 32 apparent violations by Central Hudson, which, if
established, could have resulted in up to $16 million of penalties. Central Hudson filed its response to
the Show Cause Order on December 21, 2020. The Company performed a thorough investigation and,
as indicated in its response, believed no penalty should be issued because the facts demonstrated that
Central Hudson fully complied with its Commission-approved Emergency Response Plan, which served
as the standard against which Central Hudson should be evaluated. On February 23, 2021, Central
Hudson filed a Notice of Impending Settlement Negotiations. On July 7, 2021, Central Hudson and New
York State DPS entered into a Settlement Agreement, which included a commitment by Central
Hudson to establish a $1.5 million regulatory liability to be used by Central Hudson to support or
advance storm restoration and/or electric system resiliency and reliability in excess of amounts funded
by customers. The Commission approved the Settlement Agreement within the Order Granting Motion
and Adopting Settlement Agreement on July 15, 2021. The Settlement Agreement does not include any
finding or admission of any violation by Central Hudson and it specifies that the settlement amount is
not a penalty. Central Hudson has fulfilled its obligation under the Settlement Agreement.

Energy Affordability & COVID-19 Proceeding

On June 11, 2020, the PSC established a new proceeding, Case 20-M-0266, to identify and address
the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on utility service in New York State, including all entities subject
to PSC jurisdiction or permitting authority. The proceeding included, but is not limited to, impacts on
rate-setting, rate design, utility financial strength, energy affordability programs, collections and
termination of service ensuring the provision of safe and adequate service at just and reasonable rates
in recognition of the ramifications from the COVID-19 pandemic, and the extent to which the PSC’s
clean energy programs should be maintained or accelerated.

On April 7, 2022, $250 million was approved in the New York State budget to provide funding for utility
arrears relief for customers eligible for energy affordability programs. The Energy Affordability Policy
(“EAP”) Working Group developed and filed a report on May 23, 2022, which proposed a
comprehensive arrears relief program for customers to be rolled out in two phases. Phase 1 would
address all existing low-income customers’ arrears and Phase 2 would be a broader program focused
on arrears relief for residential customers that did not meet the definition of low-income, as well as
some non-residential customers. On June 16, 2022, the PSC approved Phase 1 of the AMP, whereby
residential utility customers who receive income-qualified government assistance for utility bills and
other expenses and have past-due balances for service through May 1, 2022, will have those balances
forgiven. The Phase 1 program was funded in part through the $250 million in New York State relief,
$2.8 million of which was dispersed to Central Hudson. The remainder of the program cost is being
recovered through a temporary surcharge on utility bills not to exceed a 0.5% bill impact for residential
customers. As of December 1, 2022, Central Hudson had distributed approximately $7.1 million in relief
via bill credits to roughly 5,600 eligible customers. Additional bill credits may be processed in early
2023 related to Phase 1 as new customers have the ability to become eligible for relief through the end
of 2022.
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On January 19, 2023, the PSC approved Phase 2 AMP providing arrears relief for certain residential
and small commercial customers with arrears balances as of May 1, 2022, which were not eligible for
Phase 1. The arrears amounts will be filed with Staff by February 18, 2023, together with the Phase 2
Outreach and Education Plans. The Company was directed to utilize deferred economic development
balances to offset a portion of the program cost.

Customer Information System (“CIS”) Show Cause Order

During the March 2022 PSC session, the PSC directed DPS Staff, and subsequently instituted Case
22-00666, to investigate billing issues subsequent to the implementation and to publicly track
comments and other related documents. The Company has answered several data requests regarding
the CIS implementation and continues to collaborate with DPS Staff. On December 15, 2022, the PSC
issued its Order to Commence Proceeding and Show Cause (“CIS Show Cause Order”), under Case
22-M-0645. This Order discussed issues related to the CIS project, including system defects, training,
testing, staffing, and cited alleged apparent violations of Public Service Law (“PSL”), New York Codes,
Rules and Regulations, and prior PSC Orders. Central Hudson filed its response on January 17, 2023,
acknowledging the unintended disruptive impact on customers, and stating that the Company did not
violate the PSL, rules, or Commission Orders and neither penalties nor a prudence review is warranted.
Central Hudson cited in its response its legal position that the Office of Investigations and Enforcement
report misinterpreted, or misapplied specific sections of statutes, rules, and PSC Orders. The outcome
of this investigation cannot be predicted at this time.

Agway Energy Services LLC (“Agway”)

On February 25, 2022, Agway filed a Petition for Declaratory Ruling and Corrective Action Plan
Concerning Failure of Central Hudson Gas and Electric Corporation to provide accurate Electronic Data
Interchange information or provide accurate client bills (“Petition”). Agway is a licensed Energy Service
Company that supplies energy for approximately 1,035 customers in Central Hudson’s service territory.
The Petition alleges impacts to Agway’s business related to Central Hudson'’s billing system transition
and alleges violations of the Uniform Billing Practices (“{UBP”) and that Central Hudson breached the
Billing Services Agreement (“BSA”). Agway requested that the PSC investigate these issues, declare
violations, order that Central Hudson resolve these violations in a timely manner, appoint an
independent monitor to oversee the resolution, disgorge incurred fees, and award compensatory
damages.

On March 18, 2022, Central Hudson filed its Verified Motion to Dismiss and Opposition to the Petition of
Agway for a Declaratory Ruling (“Motion”). The Motion argues that the Petition should be dismissed
because it is not a proper Petition for Declaratory Ruling because it fails to seek a PSC interpretation to
a statute or rule and is deficient because it fails to allege a specific violation of either the UBP or BSA.
Central Hudson’s Motion also argues that it is improper for Agway to seek compensatory damages as
damages are limited pursuant to the BSA and outside of the PSC’s jurisdiction to provide. Agway has
submitted a filing requesting to enter mediation on this matter, including recurring meetings with both
parties and Department of Public Service (“DPS”) Staff. On June 24, 2022, the Company entered
mediation with Agway and continues to hold weekly meetings to discuss, investigate, and resolve
issues.

Sale of Utility Asset to Transco

On June 21, 2022, the PSC issued Order Authorizing the Transfer of Transmission Property and
Easement Interest under Case 22-E-0077. The Order was approved to increase the power transfer
capability from upstate to downstate New York. In the Order, the PSC authorized the transfer of
easement interest covering real property associated with a 12-mile overhead 115 kV electric
transmission line (“SL Line”) and certain transmission property and equipment related to the Sugarloaf
Switching Station and the SL Line, from Central Hudson to New York Transco LLC and the recognition
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of any gains realized upon the transfer for the benefit of customers. On July 11, 2022, Central Hudson

completed the sale of transmission property and easement interest for approximately $4.6 million with a
realized gain of $4.4 million which was deferred as a regulatory liability for the benefit of customers with
carrying charges at the Company’s pre-tax weighted average cost of capital as prescribed by the Order.

NOTE 5 - Income Tax
Uncertain Tax Positions

In September of 2010, Central Hudson filed a request with the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) to
change its tax accounting method related to costs to repair and maintain utility assets. The change was
effective for the tax year ended December 31, 2009. This change allows Central Hudson to take a
current tax repair deduction for a significant amount of repair costs that were previously capitalized for
tax purposes.

IRS guidance, with respect to repair deductions taken on Gas Transmission and Distribution repairs, is
still pending. Therefore, tax reserves related to the gas repair deduction continue to be shown as “Tax
Reserve” under the Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities section of the CH Energy Group and Central
Hudson Balance Sheets.

Changes in the tax reserve reflect the ongoing uncertainty related to gas transmission and distribution
repair deductions taken in the current period.

The following is a summary of CH Energy Group’s and Central Hudson’s activity related to the
uncertain tax position (In Thousands):

CH Energy Group Central Hudson
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021 2022 2021

Unrecognized tax benefits balance, beginning of the period $ 10640 $ 9,164 $ 10640 $ 9,146
Additions related to the current year $ 1336 $ 1476 $ 1,336 $ 1,476
Decreases related to the prior year $ (1,438) $ - $ (1,438) $ -
Unrecognized tax benefits balance, end of the period $ 10,538 $ 10,640 $ 10,538 $ 10,640
Offset per ASU No. 2013-11() $ (10,538) $ (10,640) $ (10,538) $ (10,640)

Tax reserve balance, end of the period $ - % - % - % -

(1) Amounts are classified as a deferred tax asset per ASU No. 2013-11, Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net
Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward EXists.

Income Tax Examinations

Jurisdiction Tax Years Open for Audit
Federal 2019 — 2021
New York State 2019 — 2021

Components of Tax Reform Regulatory Balances

As a result of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, the Company was required to revalue its deferred tax assets
and liabilities at the federal corporate income tax rate of 21%. Central Hudson recorded a regulatory
liability due to the revaluation of plant related deferred tax liabilities, which are protected under tax
normalization rules. The regulatory liability is adjusted monthly to reflect the amortization of the balance
to the income statement under the tax normalization rules. The Company also recorded a regulatory
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asset due to the revaluation of all other deferred tax balances, which are not subject to the
normalization rules.

The following is a summary of Central Hudson's activity in its regulatory liability balance related to the
protected deferred tax liability (In Thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Protected Regulatory Liability, beginning of the period $ 179,900 $ 183,915
Amortization of protected tax liability (3,825) (4,015)
Protected Regulatory Liability, end of the period $ 176,075 $ 179,900

The following is a summary of Central Hudson's activity in its regulatory asset balance related to the
unprotected impacts (In Thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Unprotected Regulatory Asset, beginning of the period $ 23,733 $ 13,464
Change in unprotected tax asset - 10,269
Unprotected Regulatory Asset, end of the period $ 23,733 $ 23,733

The unprotected regulatory tax asset consisted of an excess deferred tax asset balance, which was
partially offset by a regulatory liability resulting from the overcollection of tax from the effective date of
the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act and the date delivery rates were reset. The increase of $10.3 million in 2021
resulted from the utilization of the overcollection for rate moderation per the 2021 Rate Order. The
remaining excess deferred tax balance of $23.7 million will be addressed in the Company’s next rate
case filing.

CARES Act

The CARES Act was signed into law on March 27, 2020. As permitted under the CARES Act, Central
Hudson deferred payment of the employer share of the Social Security tax on its payroll during 2020.
The deferred payroll tax was paid over two years; with half of the required amount paid by December
31, 2021 and the other half by December 31, 2022. There was no impact on earnings or on the
effective tax rate resulting from the delayed payment of employer payroll tax under the CARES Act. As
of December 31, 2021, the liability for the deferred payment of the employer’s portion of Social Security
tax on payroll was $2.6 million reflected in “Other current liabilities” in the CH Energy Group and Central
Hudson Balance Sheets, which was paid in December 2022.

New York State 2022 Budget Bill

On April 6, 2021, the New York State fiscal year 2022 budget bill was enacted. The budget bill included
an increase in the corporate tax rate for businesses with taxable income over $5 million from 6.5% to
7.25% for tax years beginning on or after January 1, 2021 and before January 1, 2024 and extended
the capital base tax, which was set to phase out in 2021. For tax years beginning on or after January 1,
2021 and before January 1, 2024, the business capital tax rate would be 0.1875% and would phase out
for tax years beginning on and after January 1, 2024. CH Energy Group and Central Hudson have state
net operating losses (“NOL”) that are expected to reduce taxable income below the $5 million threshold
for the duration of the increased tax rate period and, therefore, that tax increase is not expected to have
an impact on the Company’s earnings or cash flows. Both CH Energy Group and Central Hudson
expect to be subject to the capital base tax during this period. For the years ended December 31, 2022
and 2021, Central Hudson recorded $1.8 million and $1.7 million of capital base tax, respectively.
Capital base tax is included in “Taxes, other than income tax” in the CH Energy Group and Central
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Hudson Statements of Income. The increase in capital base tax is included in the tax calculation used

to set rates in the 2021 Rate Order.

Reconciliations

The following are reconciliations between the amount of federal income tax computed on income before
taxes at the statutory rate and the amount reported in CH Energy Group’s Consolidated Statement of
Income and Central Hudson'’s Statement of Income (In Thousands):

CH Energy Group

Net income
Current federal income tax expense (benefit)
Current state income tax (benefit) expense
Deferred federal income tax expense
Deferred state income tax expense

Income Before Income Taxes

Computed federal tax at 21%
State income tax net of federal tax benefit
Amortization of protected deferred tax liability(")
Depreciation flow-through
Cost of removal
Other
Total Income Tax Expense
Effective tax rate - federal
Effective tax rate - state
Effective Tax Rate - Combined

Year Ended December 31,

(™ Under normalization rules, plant-related deferred taxes reverse at the same rate as the original deferral.

Central Hudson

Net income

Current federal income tax benefit

Deferred federal income tax expense

Deferred state income tax expense
Income Before Income Taxes

Computed federal tax at 21%
State income tax net of federal tax benefit
Amortization of protected deferred tax liability(")
Depreciation flow-through
Cost of removal
Other

Total Income Tax Expense

Effective tax rate - federal
Effective tax rate - state
Effective Tax Rate - Combined

2022 2021 2020
79,133 $ 73,953 $ 69,103
64 (62) (20)
(2) 225 100
15,334 11,897 9,930
5,784 4,756 5,252
100,313 $ 90,769 $ 84,365
21,066 $ 19,061 $ 17,717
4,568 3,935 4,224
(2,356) (3,093) (4,339)
349 (552) (706)
(2,348) (2,220) (1,926)
(99) (315) 292
21,180 $ 16,816 $ 15,262
15.3% 13.0% 1.7%
5.8% 5.5% 6.4%
21.1% 18.5% 18.1%

Year Ended December 31,

2022 2021 2020
$ 78,092 $ 73,623 $ 69,141
(10) - (18)
14,988 11,313 9,952
5,553 4,795 5,211
$ 98,623 $ 89,731 § 84,286
$ 20711 $ 18,844 $ 17,700
4,387 3,788 4,117
(2,356) (3,093) (4,339)
349 (552) (706)
(2,348) (2,220) (1,926)
(212) (659) 299
$ 20,5631 $ 16,108 $ 15,145
15.2% 12.6% 11.8%
5.6% 5.4% 6.2%
20.8% 18.0% 18.0%

(") Under normalization rules, plant-related deferred taxes reverse at the same rate as the original deferral.



For the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020, the combined effective tax rate for CH
Energy Group and Central Hudson is lower than the combined statutory rate due to tax normalization
rules and the timing of flow through tax items related to capital expenditures. For the year ending
December 31, 2022, the increase in the effective tax rate in relation to the comparable prior periods is
driven by higher income before taxes, which is subject to the statutory rate and unrealized book losses
excluded for tax purposes.

The following is a summary of the components of deferred taxes as reported in CH Energy Group’s
Consolidated Balance Sheets (In Thousands):

December 31,

2022 2021
Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Asset:
Unbilled revenues $ 6,603 $ 3,300
Federal R&D credit carryforward () 1,058 840
Plant-related - 2,712
Tax reform - protected deferred tax liability 46,606 47,468
Pension costs - 1,539
Income taxes refundable through future rates 10,711 9,027
Federal NOL carryforwards 28,504 10,595
New York State NOL carryforwards, net of federal benefit (") 12,854 7,263
CEF 5,075 9,192
Rate moderator 6,564 7,706
Contributions in aid of construction 10,154 9,407
Directors and officers deferred compensation 13,263 15,102
Deferred payroll taxes - 680
Cost of removal 6,209 946
Utility asset sale to Transco 1,134 -
R&D credit 696 -
Fast charging infrastructure 1,442 1,426
SIR costs and recovery 637 -
Energy affordability program 1,134 1,671
Other (M 1,932 3,748
Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Asset $ 154576 $ 132,622
Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Liability:
Depreciation $ 273,857 % 259,986
Repair allowance 3,718 3,927
Repair deduction 120,815 104,519
EAM () 1,862 1,072
OPEB ™ 2,073 150
Income taxes recoverable through future rates 21,030 17,269
Tax reform - unprotected deferred tax asset 6,203 6,203
Deferred SIR costs - 1,144
RDM 1,718 790
Demand management programs 1,923 2,301
Purchased electric costs 11,366 4,526
Purchased natural gas costs 4,423 2,106
Storm costs 10,936 3,591
RAM 4,618 4,875
Transco investment () 1,735 1,641
Other ™ 4,660 4,521
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Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Liability
Net Deferred Income Tax Liability

$ 470,937

$

418,621

$ 316,361

$

285,999

(1) Certain amounts included in Other related to prior periods, have been reclassified to conform to the December 31, 2022 presentation.

The following is a summary of the components of deferred taxes as reported in Central Hudson’s

Balance Sheet (In Thousands):

Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Asset:
Unbilled revenues
Federal R&D credit carryforward ()
Plant-related
Tax reform - protected deferred tax liability
Pension costs
Income taxes refundable through future rates
Federal NOL carryforwards
New York State NOL carryforwards, net of federal benefit ()
CEF
Rate moderator
SIR cost and recovery
Contributions in aid of construction
Directors and officers deferred compensation
Cost of removal
Fast charging infrastructure
Deferred payroll taxes
Energy affordability program
Utility asset sale to Transco
Research and development credit
Other (M
Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Asset

Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Liability:
Depreciation
Repair allowance
Repair deduction
EAM ()
OPEB ™
Income taxes recoverable through future rates
Tax reform - unprotected deferred tax asset
Deferred SIR costs
RDM
Demand management programs
Purchased electric costs
Purchased natural gas costs
Storm costs
RAM
Other ("
Accumulated Deferred Income Tax Liability
Net Deferred Income Tax Liability

December 31,

2022 2021
$ 6,603 $ 3,300
1,058 840

- 2,712

47,048 47,828

- 1,539

10,711 9,027

28,866 11,327

12,989 7,330

5,075 9,192

6,564 7,706

637 -

10,154 9,407

12,932 13,902

6,209 946

1,442 1,426

- 680

1,134 1,671

1,134 .

696 -

1,586 3,403

$ 154,838 $ 132,236
$ 273,555 $ 259,624
3,718 3,927

120,815 104,519

1,862 1,072

2,073 150

21,030 17,269

6,203 6,203

- 1,144

1,718 790

1,923 2,301

11,366 4,526

4,423 2,106

10,936 3,591

4,618 4,875

5,199 5,014

$ 469,439 $ 417 111
$ 314,601 $ 284,875

(1) Certain amounts included in Other related to prior periods, have been reclassified to conform to the December 31, 2022 presentation.
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NOTE 6 - Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates

In April 2019, National Grid and Transco were awarded the Segment B portion of one of their proposals
related to the Alternating Current Transmission Order with NYISO for a transmission project that will
improve the flow of power from upstate renewable resources to meet downstate demand and enhance
the reliability and resilience of the grid (“AC Project”). Transco is authorized to earn a return on equity
invested in the project (up to 53% of the project cost) of 9.65%, with up to an additional 1% available for
incentives. The project has an estimated cost of $600 million plus interconnection costs and CHET’s
equity funding requirement of this cost as a 6.1% owner of this project in Transco is expected to be
$19.4 million. As of December 31, 2022, CHET has made capital contributions of $16.5 million to
Transco to fund a portion of the Segment B project costs. At December 31, 2022 and 2021, CHET's
investment in Transco was approximately $23.5 million and $15.0 million, respectively.

In November 2018, the Transco limited liability company agreement was amended (“Transco
Amendment”) to allow Transco to pursue additional projects that might result from future NYISO Public
Policy Transmission Planning Processes (“PPTP Processes”). Under the Transco Amendment, CHET
would have a 10% ownership stake in transmission solutions related to future projects that result from
future PPTP Processes. CHET would also be allocated 10% of future development costs for any new
transmission projects as part of future PPTP Processes. In response to a Long Island Offshore Wind
Export Public Policy Transmission Need Project Solicitation issued by the NYISO on August 12, 2021,
Transco, partnering with the New York Power Authority (“NYPA”), submitted to NYISO on October 11,
2021, four separate proposed solutions to upgrade existing transmission facilities on Long Island to
accommodate 3,000 MWs of anticipated offshore wind generated electricity while also proposing three
alternative expansion solutions. Three unrelated developers proposed 12 other solutions. NYISO’s
response to the solicitation proposals, including the Transco-NYPA proposals, is expected to be issued
in the first half of 2023. In the event that a Transco-NYPA proposal is accepted by NYISO, CHET would
own and fund the equity investment associated with Transco’s portion of the project.

During the first quarter of 2022, CHEC received a final distribution from one of its remaining
investments following termination of the partnership. The value of CHEC's equity investments was $0.0
and $0.2 million at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

NOTE 7 — Research and Development

Central Hudson’s R&D expenditures were $3.6 million in 2022, $4.1 million in 2021, and $3.7 million in
2020. These expenditures were for internal research programs and for contributions to research
administered by NYSERDA, the Electric Power Research Institute and other industry organizations.

NOTE 8 — Leases

At December 31, 2022, CH Energy Group did not have any leases other than leases from Central
Hudson. Central Hudson'’s leasing activities accounted for as operating leases include office facilities
and equipment with remaining terms of approximately one to eight years and communication tower
space with remaining terms of approximately three to 18 years including options to renew existing
leases for an additional 10 to 15 years. Most leases include one or more options to renew, with renewal
terms that may extend the lease term from 15 to 20 years. Certain lease agreements include periodic
escalation clauses based on an index or fixed rate or require Central Hudson to pay real estate taxes,
insurance, maintenance, or other operating expenses associated with the lease premises.
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The following table details supplemental balance sheet information related to CH Energy Group and
Central Hudson’s operating leases (In Thousands):

Leases Classification December 31, December 31,
2022 2021

Operating Lease Assets Other Assets $ 3,082 $ 3,488

Current operating lease liabilities Other Current Liabilities $ 470 $ 433

Noncurrent operating lease liabilities Other Liabilities 2,759 3,155

Total Lease Liabilities $ 3,229 $ 3,588

Operating and variable lease costs, as well as short-term lease cost for the years ended December 31,
2022, 2021, and 2020, were not material to CH Energy Group or Central Hudson’s results of
operations.

As of December 31, 2022, CH Energy Group and Central Hudson had the following minimum future
maturities of operating lease liabilities (In Thousands):

Operating

Year Ending December 31, Leases
2023 $ 564
2024 525
2025 469
2026 422
2027 414
Thereafter 1,294
Total Lease Payments $ 3,688
Less: imputed interest 459
Total Lease Liabilities $ 3,229
Less: current portion 470
Total Non-Current Lease Liabilities $ 2,759

The following table includes supplemental information related to CH Energy Group and Central
Hudson’s operating leases:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Weighted-Average Remaining Lease Term (years) 9 8.4
Weighted-Average Discount Rate 3.10% 3.11%

NOTE 9 — Short-Term Borrowing Arrangements
Committed Credit Facilities

On April 4, 2022, Central Hudson entered into a first amendment increasing lender supplement to the
March 2020 Central Hudson credit agreement with five commercial banks. The amendment replaces
LIBOR with a benchmark replacement interest rate and increases the aggregate commitment by the
lenders by $50 million, making the aggregate amount of total commitments equal to $250 million. The
credit agreement as amended has a five-year term, maturing in March 2025. Proceeds received from
the revolving credit agreement are used for working capital needs and for general corporate purposes.
Letters of credit are available up to $15 million from three participating banks.
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The Central Hudson credit agreement includes a covenant that its total funded debt to total capital will
not exceed 0.65 to 1.00. The credit agreement is also subject to certain restrictions and conditions,
including that there will be no event of default and, subject to certain exceptions, that Central Hudson
will not sell, lien or otherwise encumber its assets or enter into certain transactions including certain
transactions with affiliates. Central Hudson is also required to pay a commitment fee calculated at a
rate based on the applicable Standard and Poor’s or Moody’s rating on the average daily unused
portion of the credit facility. At December 31, 2022, Central Hudson was in compliance with all financial
debt covenants.

Uncommitted Credit

At December 31, 2022, CH Energy Group and Central Hudson had $10 million and $60 million
respectively, in uncommitted short-term credit arrangements with four commercial banks totaling $70
million. Proceeds from these credit arrangements are used to diversify cash sources and provide
competitive options to minimize Central Hudson's cost of short-term debt.

On November 4, 2022, CH Energy Group entered into a $10 million, short-term uncommitted credit
agreement with a commercial bank to provide liquidity to meet short term cash needs.

On December 15, 2022, Central Hudson entered into a $30 million, short-term uncommitted credit
agreement with a commercial bank not included in its current credit facility to provide additional liquidity
to its existing portfolio. Proceeds received from the new credit agreement are to be used for working
capital needs and general corporate purposes.

At December 31, 2021, there were no short-term credit arrangements for CH Energy Group. Central
Hudson had uncommitted short-term credit arrangements with two commercial banks totaling $30
million.

Balances outstanding under the various credit arrangements are as follows (Dollars in Thousands):

CH Energy Group Central Hudson
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2022 2021 2022 2021
Committed Credit $ 90,000 $ 100,000 $ 90,000 $ 100,000
Uncommitted Credit 15,000 7,000 15,000 7,000
Total $ 105,000 $ 107,000 $ 105,000 $ 107,000
Weighted Average Interest Rate 5.17% 0.99% 5.17% 0.99%

NOTE 10 - Capitalization — Common and Preferred Stock
Capital Contributions

During 2022, CH Energy Group received capital contributions of $54.3 million from its parent FortisUS.
Additionally, during 2022, Central Hudson received capital contributions of $46.0 million from its parent
CH Energy Group and CHET received capital contributions of $7.9 million from its parent CH Energy
Group in order to fund capital expenditures related to the Transco AC Project.

During 2021, CH Energy Group received a contribution of approximately $5.0 million under the tax

sharing agreement with its parent FortisUS. Additionally, during 2021, CH Energy Group received
capital contributions of $4.4 million from FortisUS and Central Hudson received a capital contribution of
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$6.0 million from its parent company CH Energy Group. During 2021, CHET received capital
contributions of $4.0 million from its parent CH Energy Group in order to fund capital expenditures
related to the Transco AC Project.

During 2020, CH Energy Group received capital contributions of $15.0 million from its parent FortisUS
and Central Hudson received capital contributions of $12.0 million from its parent company CH Energy
Group. Additionally, during 2020, CHET received a $0.3 million capital contribution from its parent CH

Energy Group.

These contributions were recorded as paid in capital, see CH Energy Group’s and Central Hudson’s
Consolidated Statements of Equity.

Common Stock Dividends

CH Energy Group’s ability to pay dividends is affected by the ability of its subsidiaries to pay dividends.
The Federal Power Act limits the payment of annual dividends by Central Hudson to its retained
earnings. More restrictive is the PSC’s limit on the dividends Central Hudson may pay to CH Energy
Group, which is 100% of the average annual income available for common stock, calculated on a two-
year rolling average basis. Based on this calculation, Central Hudson was restricted to a maximum
annual payment of $76.0 million, $71.0 million, and $67.0 million in dividends to CH Energy Group for
the periods ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020, respectively. Central Hudson’s ability to pay
dividends would be reduced to 75% of its average annual income in the event of a downgrade of its
senior debt rating below “BBB+” by more than one rating agency, if the stated reason for the
downgrade is related to any of CH Energy Group’s or Central Hudson’s affiliates. Further restrictions
are imposed for rating downgrades below this level. In addition, Central Hudson would not be allowed
to pay dividends if its average common equity ratio for the 13 months prior to a proposed dividend was
more than 200 basis points below the ratio used in setting rates. CH Energy Group’s other subsidiaries
do not have express restrictions on their ability to pay dividends.

During 2022, 2021, and 2020 CH Energy Group did not pay any dividends to FortisUS, the sole
shareholder of CH Energy Group.

Central Hudson did not pay any dividends to its parent CH Energy Group in 2022, 2021, and 2020.

During 2022, CHET paid dividends to its parent CH Energy Group of $1.0 million. CHET did not pay
dividends to its parent CH Energy Group during 2021 and 2020.

CHEC did not pay any dividends to its parent CH Energy Group during 2022. CHEC paid dividends of
$1.0 million to its parent CH Energy Group in 2021. CHEC did not pay any dividends to its parent CH
Energy Group during 2020.

Preferred Stock

Other than one share of Junior Preferred Stock, Central Hudson had no outstanding preferred stock as
of December 31, 2022 and 2021.

NOTE 11 - Capitalization — Long-Term Debt
The majority of the long-term debt instruments are redeemable at the discretion of CH Energy Group

and Central Hudson, at any time, at the greater of par or a specified price as defined in the respective
long-term debt agreements, together with accrued and unpaid interest.
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A summary of CH Energy Group’s and Central Hudson’s long-term debt is as follows (In Thousands):

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Unamortized
Debt Issuance

Unamortized
Debt Issuance

Series Maturity Date Principal Costs Principal Costs
Central Hudson:
Promissory Notes:
2006 Series E (5.76%)“ Nov. 17, 2031 27,000 $ 153 27,000 $ 171
1999 Series B2 Jul. 01, 2034 33,700 199 33,700 216
2005 Series E (5.84%)“ Dec. 05, 2035 24,000 129 24,000 139
2007 Series F (5.804%)®) Mar. 23, 2037 33,000 197 33,000 211
2009 Series F (5.80%)®) Nov. 01, 2039 24,000 183 24,000 193
2010 Series B (5.64%)® Sep. 21, 2040 24,000 89 24,000 94
2010 Series G (5.716%)®© Apr. 01, 2041 30,000 188 30,000 199
2011 Series G (3.378%)® Apr. 01, 2022 - - 23,400 7
2011 Series G (4.707%)® Apr. 01, 2042 10,000 83 10,000 88
2012 Series G (4.776%)® Apr. 01, 2042 48,000 408 48,000 429
2012 Series G (4.065%)®) Oct. 01, 2042 24,000 246 24,000 259
2013 Series D (4.09%)(" Dec. 2, 2028 16,700 62 16,700 72
2014 Series E .01 Mar. 26, 2024 30,000 24 30,000 45
2015 Series F (2.98%)") Mar. 31, 2025 20,000 35 20,000 51
2016 Series H (2.56%)® Oct. 28, 2026 10,000 35 10,000 44
2016 Series | (3.63%)®) Oct. 28, 2046 20,000 112 20,000 117
2017 Series J (4.05%)®) Aug. 31, 2047 30,000 158 30,000 164
2017 Series K (4.20%)® Aug. 31, 2057 30,000 166 30,000 171
2018 Series L (4.27%)® Jun. 15, 2048 25,000 162 25,000 169
2018 Series M (3.99%)®) Oct. 28, 2026 40,000 117 40,000 149
2018 Series N (4.21%)®) Oct. 28, 2033 40,000 179 40,000 196
2019 Series O (3.89%)® Oct. 28, 2049 50,000 250 50,000 259
2019 Series P (3.99%)® Oct. 28, 2059 50,000 257 50,000 264
2020 Series Q (3.42%)® May 14 2050 30,000 160 30,000 166
2020 Series R (3.62%)®) Jul. 14, 2060 30,000 165 30,000 169
2020 Series S (2.03%)® Sep. 28, 2030 40,000 169 40,000 192
2020 Series T (2.03%)®) Nov. 17, 2030 30,000 139 30,000 157
2021 Series U (3.29%)® Mar. 16, 2051 75,000 392 75,000 406
2021 Series V (3.22%)® Oct. 30, 2051 55,000 295 55,000 305
2022 Series W (2.37%)(' Jan. 27, 2027 50,000 215 - -
2022 Series X (2.59%)(1%) Jan. 27, 2029 60,000 273 - -
2022 Series Y (5.07%)'9 Sept. 28, 2032 100,000 504 - -
2022 Series Z (5.42%)'0 Sept. 28, 2052 10,000 66 - -
Total Central Hudson 1,119,400 $ 5,810 922,800 $ 5,102
Less: current portion of long-term debt - (23,400)
Central Hudson Net Long-term Debt $ 1,119,400 899,400
CH Energy Group:
Promissory Notes:
2009 Series B (6.80%)® Dec. 15, 2025 6,746 $ 28 8,710 $ 37
Less: current portion of long-term debt (2,100) (1,964)
CH Energy Group Net Long-term Debt 1,124,046 $ 5838 $ 906,146 $ 5,139

(1)
(2
@)
(4)
®)
(6)

@)

Promissory Notes issued in connection with the sale by NYSERDA of tax-exempt pollution control revenue bonds.

Variable (auction) rate notes.
The maturity date represents the final repayment date, principal repayments are due semi-annually.

Issued pursuant to a 2004 PSC Order approving the issuance by Central Hudson prior to December 31, 2006, of up to $85 million of

unsecured medium-term notes.

Issued pursuant to a 2006 PSC Order approving the issuance by Central Hudson prior to December 31, 2009, of up to $120 million of

unsecured medium-term notes.

Issued pursuant to a 2009 PSC Order approving the issuance by Central Hudson prior to December 31, 2012, of up to $250 million of
unsecured medium-term notes or other forms of long-term indebtedness.
Issued pursuant to a 2012 PSC Order approving the issuance by Central Hudson prior to December 31, 2015, of up to $250 million of
unsecured medium-term notes or other forms of long-term indebtedness.
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(8) Issued pursuant to a 2015 PSC Order approving the issuance by Central Hudson prior to December 31, 2018, of up to $350 million of
unsecured medium-term notes or other forms of long-term indebtedness.

9) Issued pursuant to a 2018 PSC Order approving the issuance by Central Hudson prior to December 31, 2021, of up to $425 million of
unsecured medium-term notes or other forms of long-term indebtedness.

(10)  Issued pursuant to a 2021 PSC Order approving the issuance by Central Hudson prior to December 31, 2024, of up to $412 million of
unsecured medium-term notes or other forms of long-term indebtedness.

(11)  Variable rate notes.

On January 27, 2022, Central Hudson issued $50 million of Series W, 5-year Senior Notes with an
interest rate of 2.37% per annum and a maturity date of January 27, 2027 and $60 million of Series X,
7-year Senior Notes with an interest rate of 2.59% per annum and a maturity date of January 27, 2029.
On September 28, 2022, Central Hudson issued $100 million of Series Y, 10-year Senior Notes with an
interest rate of 5.07% per annum and a maturity date of September 28, 2032 and $10 million of Series
Z, 30-year Senior Notes with an interest rate of 5.42% per annum and a maturity date of September 28,
2052. Central Hudson used the proceeds from the sale of the Senior Notes for general corporate
purposes, including the repayment of $23.4 million of maturing debt on April 1, 2022 and the repayment
of short-term borrowings.

During 2021, Central Hudson issued $130 million of unsecured Senior Notes, with various interest rates
and maturities of 30 years. Central Hudson used the proceeds from the sale of the Senior Notes to
repay $44.2 million of maturing debt and for general corporate purposes, including the repayment of
short-term borrowings.

At December 31, 2022, Central Hudson had $30 million of 2014 Series E 10-year notes with a floating
interest rate of 3-month LIBOR plus 1%. To mitigate the potential cash flow impact from unexpected
increases in short-term interest rates, Central Hudson purchased a four-year interest rate cap that will
expire on March 26, 2024. The rate cap has a notional amount equal to the outstanding principal
amount of the 2014 Series E notes and is based on the quarterly reset of the LIBOR rate on the
quarterly interest payment dates. Central Hudson would receive a payout if the LIBOR rate exceeds 3%
at the start of any quarterly interest period during the term of the cap. Central Hudson received an
immaterial payout during the year ended December 31, 2022. There were no payouts on these interest
rate caps during the year ended December 31, 2021.

The principal amount of Central Hudson’s outstanding 1999 Series B NYSERDA Bonds totaled $33.7
million at December 31, 2022. These are tax-exempt multi-modal bonds that are currently in a variable
rate mode and mature in 2034. To mitigate the potential cash flow impact from unexpected increases in
short-term interest rates on Series B NYSERDA Bonds, Central Hudson purchased a three-year
interest rate cap, which expired on April 1, 2022. The rate cap had a notional amount equal to the
outstanding principal amount of the Series B bonds and was based on the monthly weighted average of
an index of tax-exempt variable rate debt, multiplied by 175%. Central Hudson would receive a payout
if the adjusted index exceeded 4% for a given month. There were no payouts on these interest rate
caps in 2021. During 2022, Central Hudson purchased a one-year interest rate cap. The rate cap has a
notional amount equal to the outstanding principal amount of the Series B bonds and expires on April 1,
2023. The cap is based on the monthly weighted average of Securities Industry and Financial Markets
Association (“SIFMA”) index, multiplied by 1.75. Central Hudson would receive a payout if the adjusted
index exceeds 5% for a given month. During the fourth quarter of 2022, following Federal Reserve
interest rate increases during the year, the adjusted SIFMA rate index exceeded the 5% cap. As a
result, Central Hudson received an immaterial payout during the year ended December 31, 2022.

See Note 16 — “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” for fair value disclosures
related to these interest rate cap agreements.

In its 2021 Rate Order, the PSC extended the continued deferral accounting treatment for variations in

the interest costs of the 1999 Series B NYSERDA Bonds and the Series E 10-year notes. As such,
variations between the actual interest rates on these bonds and the interest rate included in the current

-43 -



delivery rate structure for these bonds are deferred for future recovery from or refund to customers and
therefore do not impact earnings. The regulatory asset or liability related to the variable rate note is
included in the “other” category, See Note 4 — “Regulatory Matters”.

Long-Term Debt Maturities

See Note 17 — “Other Fair Value Measurements” for a schedule of long-term debt maturing or to be
redeemed during the next five years and thereafter.

Financing Petition

By Order issued and effective November 22, 2021, the PSC authorized Central Hudson to enter into
multi-year credit agreements in an aggregate amount not to exceed $250 million; and to issue and sell
new long-term debt in an aggregate amount not to exceed $412 million through December 2024. The
Order also allows Central Hudson to refinance $33.7 million of existing variable debt obligations prior to
December 31, 2024. The approval to issue and sell up to $412 million of long-term debt provides
Central Hudson with additional means to fund operational needs, continued capital investments, and
repay maturing debt.

Debt Covenants

CH Energy Group’s $6.8 million of privately placed notes require compliance with certain covenants
including maintaining a ratio of total consolidated debt to total consolidated capitalization of no more
than 0.65 to 1.00 and not permitting certain debt, other than the privately placed notes, associated with
the unregulated operations of CH Energy Group to exceed 10% of total consolidated assets.

Central Hudson, under the terms of the various note purchase agreements, is subject to similar
financial covenants and restrictions to those of CH Energy Group, including restrictions with respect to
Central Hudson’s indebtedness and assets. As of December 31, 2022, CH Energy Group and Central
Hudson were in compliance with all covenants.

NOTE 12 — Post-Employment Benefits

In its Orders, the PSC has authorized deferral accounting treatment for any variations between actual
Pension and OPEB expense, and the amount included in the current delivery rate structure. As a result,
variations in expenses for post-employment benefit plans at Central Hudson do not have any impact on
earnings.

Pension Benefits

Central Hudson has a non-contributory Retirement Plan covering substantially all of its employees hired
before January 1, 2008 and a non-qualified SERP for certain executives. The Retirement Plan is a
defined benefit plan, which provides pension benefits based on an employee’s compensation and years
of service. In 2007, Central Hudson amended the Retirement Plan to eliminate these benefits for
managerial, professional, and supervisory employees hired on or after January 1, 2008. The
Retirement Plan for unionized employees was similarly amended for all employees hired on or after
May 1, 2008. As of December 31, 2022, 28% of all active employees were eligible to participate in the
Retirement Plan. The Retirement Plan’s assets are held in a trust fund. Central Hudson has provided
periodic updates to the benefit formulas stated in the Retirement Plan.

Central Hudson'’s funded status for Pension benefits was $57.8 million at December 31, 2022 and
$68.7 million at December 31, 2021. The fluctuation in Central Hudson’s prefunded status of
approximately $10.9 million was the result of a decrease in the plan assets of approximately $220.4
million, partially offset by the decrease of $209.5 million in PBO liabilities. The decrease in plan assets
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was driven by investment losses and the decrease in liabilities was primarily driven by an increase in
the discount rate.

The funded status includes the difference between the PBO for the Retirement Plan and the market
value of the pension assets, net of any liability for the non-qualified SERP. The funded status does not
reflect approximately $39.7 million and $40.1 million of SERP trust assets at December 31, 2022 and
2021.

The cumulative amount of net periodic benefit cost in excess of employer contributions at December
31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 was $9.6 million and $26.1 million, respectively. This does not
include any cumulative contributions to the SERP as it is a non-qualified plan.

The differe